
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, November 3, 2021

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

21-1534 Common Council Meeting Minutes of October 20, 2021

 

CC Minutes 10-20-21.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

21-1548 Proclamations:

 - Appleton High Schools DECA Week

 - Native American Heritage Month

 - Runaway & Homeless Youth Prevention

 - Small Business Saturday

Appleton High Schools DECA Week Proclamation.pdf

Native American Heritage Month Proclamation.pdf

Runaway Homeless Youth Prevention Month Proclamation.pdf

Small Business Saturday Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

21-1550 COVID-19 Report

 

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 10/29/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20282
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3124cf2-9044-45b1-abbe-8be73544d27e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20296
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e24e5db2-acf0-4419-a86d-9ab79177185f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fcb00dd1-0e7d-42b4-8ca6-c9599a71084f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eb703929-fb1d-4826-b89d-cbc4b9c256c7.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ab227f20-bf50-45c3-9095-c9c32dee6d1d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20298


November 3, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

21-1549 Resolution related to Wards in the City of Appleton, as a result of 

Redistricting

 

Census Block Resolution 2021 Redistricting.pdfAttachments:

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

19-1886 Request to rescind approval for "The Collective" sculpture within the E. 

College Avenue and N. Catherine Street right-of-way.

 

The Collective log of public dialogue-.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

12/9/19 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Item 19-1886 held until January 13, 2020.

1/13/20 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Amend item 19-1886.   City to work on alternate location in first quarter of 

2020.

1/22/20 Common Council referred to the Municipal Services Committee

1/27/20 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Item 19-1886 be held until February 19, 2020 meeting.

2/19/20 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

Item 19-1886 be held until March 9th meeting.

3/9/20 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

3/18/20 Common Council held

4/1/20 Common Council approved

10/25/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

Action extends lease to April 30, 2022 and this is a final amendment/extension.

21-0868 Request from Blue Sky Contractors for a street occupancy permit for four 

parking stalls (CAW 310, 312, 314 & 316) for the commercial development 

project at 318 W. College Avenue be approved from June 14, 2021 

through October 29, 2021 (except for September 24th and 25th).

 

Legislative History 

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 10/29/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20297
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=774f37eb-052d-4fd0-a05f-52eb59287a41.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=15021
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4e8adb31-6c92-44d7-b00a-5a6932e6bf72.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17618


November 3, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

6/21/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

7/7/21 Common Council approved

10/25/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

21-1466 Request from Professional Services Industries, Inc. for a permanent street 

occupancy permit to install three monitoring wells in the alley adjacent to 

306 W. Washington Street.

 

Professional Services Industries.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/25/21 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

21-1419 Reserve "Class B" Liquor and Class "B" Beer License Permanent 

Premise Amendment application for Fox River Boat Holdings Co. d/b/a 

River Tyme Bistro, Candice Mortara, Agent, located at 425 W Water St 

Unit 100.

River Tyme Bistro S&L.pdf

Denial Recommendation -River Tyme Bistro.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

10/13/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

10/27/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

The Premise amendment was recommended for approval contingent upon 

approval and recommendations from the Community & Economic Development 

Department, Fire Department, and Inspections Department.

21-1345 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License application for Tee Tees 

Nachos LLC, Timasha Thornton, Agent, located at 550 N Morrison St #C, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.

Tee Tees Nachos LLC Class A Combo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/13/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

10/20/21 Common Council referred to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee

10/27/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for denial

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 10/29/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20214
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3d213824-0a93-4e6f-b1c6-64c9337d2793.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20167
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fd77d3a5-3214-416a-bca1-29587aa4cc92.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=74f1dc51-e034-4f13-a6b5-00f63b94110a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20093
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fa78571c-2eee-4843-8706-4b68d84f96ab.pdf


November 3, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

21-1471 Class "A" Beer License application for True North Energy LLC d/b/a True 

North #822, Daniel J Pamperin, Agent, located at 3411 N Ballard Rd, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.

True North #822.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/27/21 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

21-1348 Request to approve the Ziegler Mackville Road & EE Annexation 

consisting of approximately 1.4407 acres located at N2883 County Road 

EE, the southwest corner of North Ballard Road and East Mackville Road, 

currently in the Town of Center, as shown on the attached maps, subject to 

the stipulation in the attached staff report

StaffReport_ZieglerMackvilleRd_EE_Annexation_For10-13-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/13/21 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on November 3, 2021.

21-1349 Request to approve the Lightning Drive/C.T.H. JJ (Right-of-Way) 

Annexation consisting of approximately 12.6622 acres generally located 

east of North Ballard Road and north of East Edgewood Drive, currently in 

the Town of Grand Chute, as shown on the attached maps, subject to the 

stipulation in the attached staff report

StaffReport_LightningDr_JJ_Annexation_For10-13-21.pdf

DOA 14443_LightningDrJJAnnex_ReviewLetter.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

10/13/21 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

Proceeds to Council on November 3, 2021.

21-1451 Request to approve the Spartan Drive (Right-of-Way) Annexation 

consisting of approximately 3.9468 acres generally located west of North 

Meade Street, connecting existing East Spartan Drive right-of-way to the 

west and east, currently in the Town of Grand Chute, as shown on the 

attached maps, subject to the stipulation in the attached staff report

StaffReport_SpartanDr_Annexation_For10-27-21.pdf

WI DOA_SpartanDrROWAnnex_ReviewLetter.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

10/27/21 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 10/29/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20219
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f0144cd6-5182-4d98-8808-9ca12d480374.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20096
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6bf7bc34-a3a3-4312-8478-7db1062fe5d6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20097
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3505b63f-4e42-4854-8463-bca2918fe3cd.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=def42ad4-2b24-49dc-bc73-14844d865ff4.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20199
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3d4706a-3381-4cb1-bf9a-d4335388f9ca.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=82350ddb-4db7-4882-9c89-ea9a079f618e.pdf


November 3, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

21-1457 Action Item:  Award Mead Pool Condition Analysis Project to GRAEF for a 

contract amount of $44,975.00

 

Mead Pool Condition Anlysis Memo.docAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/25/21 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

21-1410 Request to approve the use of 2021 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 

funds and approve the related 2021 Budget amendment:

ARPA Special Revenue Fund

Salaries +$   900,000

Fringe Benefits +$   270,000

Miscellaneous Supplies +$     50,000

Medical/Lab Supplies +$   300,000

Miscellaneous Equipment +$     50,000

Consulting Services +$   150,000

Contractor Fee +$1,000,000

Other Contracts & Obligations +$   421,841

Grant Payments +$   250,000

Capital Outlay +$2,000,000

Transfer Out - Parking Utility +$1,500,000

Federal Grants +$6,891,841

to record 2021 ARPA funds received and related expenditures (2/3 vote of 

Council required)

 

Finance Committee - ARPA Memo.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/11/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

10/20/21 Common Council referred to the Finance Committee

10/25/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-1459 Request to award Unit O-21 Stormwater Pond Sediment Removal and 

Disposal to Veit & Company, Inc in the amount of $87,000 with a 5.8% 

contingency of $5,000 for a project total not to exceed $92,000

 

Award of Contract - Unit O-21.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/25/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 10/29/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20205
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9e78a9e9-db51-47a4-905e-9701b8507428.doc
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20158
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9dc70e33-8dc3-4fdd-8d55-c05c0c1190ed.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20207
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7f3f1c54-b106-47f1-a303-a1c81eb5a00b.pdf


November 3, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

21-1460 Request to approve the following 2021 Budget amendment:

Facilities Management Capital Projects Fund

Ellen Kort Park Phase I Project    +$750,645

Nelson River Crossing Project    - $750,645

to reallocate excess budget funds from the Nelson River Crossing project 

to the Ellen Kort Park Phase I project (2/3 vote of Council required)

 

2021 Ellen Kort Park - Phase I_.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/25/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

21-1461 Request to approve the following 2021 Budget amendment:

Facilities Management Capital Projects Fund

MSB Office Renovation Project    +$  40,000

Roof Replacement Project    - $  40,000

to reallocate excess budget funds from the roof replacement project to the 

MSB office renovation project (2/3 vote of Council required)

 

2021 Municipal Services Budget transfer.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

10/25/21 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

21-1383 Request to approve the Development Agreement with MF Housing 

Partners, LLC for improvements and redevelopment of 6 parcels located 

on N. Oneida Street, E. Harris Street, and N. Appleton Street (Parcel Nos. 

31-2-0441-00, 31-2-0443-00, 31-2-0437-00, 31-2-0536-00, 

31-2-0534-00, and 31-2-0529-00) in Tax Increment Financing District No. 

11

Rise Apts DA Memo to CEDC_10-27-21.pdf

0718-Rise Apts-MFHousingPartners-DevelopmentAgrmnt-DRAFT10-18-21.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

10/27/21 Community & Economic 

Development Committee

recommended for approval

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 10/29/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20208
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4cb86b67-23b6-4e82-8a0a-c25d779cfe68.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20209
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a9e4f77f-b0e5-410b-9786-00fdb8a90798.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20131
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=78968591-f432-4266-982e-9517a32ba046.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fd03760b-8b12-421e-9bc4-3d9d8fb04f0c.pdf


November 3, 2021Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

21-1545 Ordinances #71-21 (Redistricting - Aldermanic Districts); #72-21 (Ziegler 

Mackville Road & EE Annexation); #73-21 (Lightning Drive & CTH JJ 

Annexation); #74-21 (Spartan Drive Annexation); and #75-21 (Amendment 

to Ordinance #70-21, Relating to Boundaries and Wards)

Ordinances going to Council 11-3-21.pdfAttachments:

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

Page 7 City of Appleton Printed on 10/29/2021

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20293
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c8ffaa76-ca71-4fcb-975d-83eb7b1da23c.pdf


100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, October 20, 2021

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:00 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Alfheim.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson Martin appeared virtually.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor Jake Woodford

Present: 15 - 

Alderperson Joe ProhaskaExcused: 1 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

21-1411 Common Council Minutes of October 6, 2021

CC Minutes 10-6-21.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Meltzer moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the Minutes 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20159
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7c6d1381-8008-4646-847d-b713beeb191f.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Alderperson Joe Prohaska1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

21-1444 COVID-19 Report

 

COVID -19 Report 102021.pdfAttachments:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

21-1410 Request to approve the use of 2021 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 

funds and approve the related 2021 Budget amendment:

ARPA Special Revenue Fund

Salaries +$   900,000

Fringe Benefits +$   270,000

Miscellaneous Supplies +$     50,000

Medical/Lab Supplies +$   300,000

Miscellaneous Equipment +$     50,000

Consulting Services +$   150,000

Contractor Fee +$1,000,000

Other Contracts & Obligations +$   421,841

Grant Payments +$   250,000

Capital Outlay +$2,000,000

Transfer Out - Parking Utility +$1,500,000

Federal Grants +$6,891,841

to record 2021 ARPA funds received and related expenditures (2/3 vote 

of Council required)

 

Finance Committee - ARPA Memo.pdfAttachments:

This Item was referred back to the Finance Committee by Alderperson Reed.  

Alderperson Wolff objected, seconded by Alderperson Smith.  A vote was 

taken to sustain the objection (2/3 required).  Motion failed 8/6.  The Item 

remains referred back to Committee.

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20192
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=86e4855b-982b-4e18-a854-a0d2e30b6739.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20158
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9dc70e33-8dc3-4fdd-8d55-c05c0c1190ed.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-1345 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License application for Tee Tees 

Nachos LLC, Timasha Thornton, Agent, located at 550 N Morrison St #C, 

contingent upon approval from all departments.

Tee Tees Nachos LLC Class A Combo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was referred back to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee by Alderperson Siebers, due back on 10/27/2021.

21-1358 Request from Greenfire for a street occupancy permit for their 

construction fencing and staging area to extend 30 feet into the Oneida 

Street right-of-way at 135 E. College Avenue from October 11, 2021 

through March 1, 2022.

 

Greenfire project-Zuehlke bldg-street occupancy permit.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus, that the Street 

Occupancy Permit be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Joe Prohaska1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

21-1381 **CRITICAL TIMING** Request to approve the Offer to Purchase from 

Hayden Properties, LLC and/or its assigns to purchase Lot 26 (Tax Id 

#31-9-5712-26), Lot 27 (Tax Id #31-9-5712-27), Lot 28 (Tax Id 

#31-9-5712-28) and Lot 29 (Tax Id #31-9-5712-29) Southpoint 

Commerce Park Plat No. 3 and Tax Id #31-9-5712-00, comprising a total 

of approximately 30.44 acres, at a purchase price of $1,156,720.00 

($38,000 per acre)

Hayden Properties LLC OTP Memo_10-13-21.pdf

Hayden Properties OTP 9-29-21.pdf

SouthpointCommerceParkMap_SubjectParcel_10_2021.pdf

SPCP Deed Restrictions.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the Offer to 

Purchase be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20093
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fa78571c-2eee-4843-8706-4b68d84f96ab.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20106
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3fb14b5d-9229-4308-a629-9a1045e22b27.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20129
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cd8c7723-09da-4235-b9fe-07d6c2a212c8.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d1ce49ca-1e9e-4567-94e2-d48a92d0daeb.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9011c88c-cd6d-485e-a21b-82ea8d71c123.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=59de4f22-ede1-4782-a1d6-55d8c52757ab.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Joe Prohaska1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

21-1418 Redistricting Ward/Aldermanic Plans

 

OptionA-Revised.pdf

OptionD.pdf

OptionE.pdf

OptionF.pdf

Van Zeeland Redistricting Statement 10-18-21.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Hartzheim, that the 

Redistricting Plan be amended by substitution to approve Option F.  After much 

discussion Alderperson Smith withdrew his Motion and Hartzheim withdrew 

her second.  No action was taken on the Motion to amend by substitution.

Alderperson Smith moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus to approve Option 

E.  Roll Call.  Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson 

Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Nay: Alderperson Joe Martin and Alderperson Michael Smith2 - 

Excused: Alderperson Joe Prohaska1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Fenton moved, Alderperson Van Zeeland seconded, to approve 

the balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Page 4City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20166
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5d5052f9-ed12-4d19-97fd-faef330f049f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5502795e-09f9-48d6-a309-a26280c31b00.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ef4f756d-30d7-4309-98fd-5bd47800617b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=75bd4da8-1d95-4885-a7cb-6b1bb467e21a.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cae76454-64b9-4e9b-8997-65d388322c03.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Excused: Alderperson Joe Prohaska1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

21-1158 Request from Grant Thompson Construction, Inc. for a street occupancy 

permit to place a dumpster in the Roosevelt Street right-of-way at 610 E. 

Roosevelt Street from August 6, 2021 through October 8, 2021.

 

Grant Thompson-610 E Roosevelt St.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1354 Request from Supreme Tattoo Society for a street occupancy permit to 

place a picnic table in the College Avenue beautification strip at 612 W. 

College Avenue.

 

Supreme Tattoo-street occupancy permi.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1355 Request from Brian Hodgkiss Injury Lawyers to install signage on the 

College Avenue Skywalk.  This request is consistent with the College 

Avenue Skywalk Agreement.

 

Brian Hodgkiss Injury Lawyers-Signage.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1364 Request from Blue Sky Contractors for a street occupancy permit for their 

crane to extend 2 feet into the alley behind 322 W. College Avenue from 

October 7, 2021 through July 1, 2022.

 

Blue Sky Contractors.-318 W College-crane.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1406 Request from Security Luebke Roofing for a street occupancy permit to 

place a small crane on the corner of Douglas Street and 4th Street from 

October 7, 2021 through October 31, 2021.

 

Security Luebke-1635 W Spencer St.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17908
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c92ccac8-f99b-41bc-b2a6-112bbafdf204.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20102
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1fe7ac49-7fa9-44ac-8212-ba1ac914a117.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20103
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6cc122b8-b314-41ad-8f57-5f5a7efc57fa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20112
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=341d444b-4d13-4926-beaf-6b55cd252ed3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20154
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f8e21759-b929-42e9-840d-3bc3f7b22a75.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

21-1356 "Class B" Liquor and Class "B" Beer Temporary Premise Amendment 

application for Dairyland Brew Pub, Dorri Schmidt, Agent, located at 

1216 E Wisconsin Ave, contingent upon approval from all departments.

Dairyland Brew Pub-Lumberjack Day S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

21-1315 Request to approve the Extraterritorial Preliminary Plat for Auburn 

Estates located in the Town of Grand Chute as shown on the attached 

maps

StaffReport_AuburnEstates_PrePlat_For10-13-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1350 Request to approve the North Edgewood Estates 3 Final Plat as shown 

on the attached maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff 

report

StaffReport_NorthEdgewoodEstates3_FinalPlat_For10-13-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

21-1370 Request to award the City of Appleton Green Ramp Light Fixture 

Replacement purchase order to Crescent Electric Supply, Co in the 

amount of $160,093.05

 

2021 Green Ramp Light Fixtures.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20104
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=392f623f-4025-46da-9e36-481380ff7a1b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20063
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b629d03b-9410-47d3-99d8-6fb09646e78b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20098
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=02022ec5-39ec-46aa-94cf-a4d34aa4d389.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20118
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c76db7b5-5ccf-468d-a943-0fb94a4c5a7c.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-1371 Request approval of a construction contract for the DAF Conversion to 

Receiving Tank Project to Staab Construction Corporation in the amount 

of $247,000 with a contingency of $24,700 for a total not to exceed cost 

of $271,700

 

utilities memo #3 RS Coating Contract Award 09-30-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1386 Request to award the City of Appleton's 2021 Police Station Security 

Fence project contract to IEI General Contractors, Inc in the amount of 

$169,000 with a contingency of 12% for a project total not to exceed 

$189,280 and approve the following 2021 budget adjustment:

Facilities Management Capital Projects Fund

Roof Replacement Project - $68,280

Police Department Security Fence Project +$68,280

to transfer funds to cover the additional costs due to manufacturing and 

tech equipment shortages (2/3 vote of Council required)

 

2021 Police Department Security Fence Project with Budget 

transfer.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1387 Request to Award Unit U-21 Apple Creek Court and Plamann Park 

Sewer & Water to Superior Sewer & Water Construction, Inc in the 

amount of $3,899,181 with a 2.5% contingency of $100,000 for a project 

total not to exceed $3,999,181

 

Award of Contract - Unit U-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

Page 7City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20119
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6d98a5b0-cef4-47f3-829e-01e209eb82b3.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20134
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b2e9e985-94ec-4e9a-883b-94debab6afd6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20135
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ee1052d2-83c2-498d-8d3f-218beb0ca0da.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-1378 Approve Wastewater Rate Increase of 4% to be effective January 1, 

2022.

 

WW Rate Increase memo Oct 2021.pdf

Rate Sheet 2022.pdf

Comparison of Annual Wastewater Bills.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1379 Request to Approve Change Order #1 for 2020G Stormwater Consulting 

Services Contract for Lightning Drive Culverts and Stormwater Practices 

60% Preliminary Design with raSmith in an amount not to exceed 

$20,000.

 

2020G Lightning 60% Design Contract CO1 Memo Util Cmte 

10-06-2021.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

21-1403 Request to approve request to change Public Works table of organization 

between CEA and Parking Utility.

 

DPW TO change for CEA and Parking Utility.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1404 Request to approve change to Human Resources table of organization.  

 

HR table of organization change memo.pdf

Human Resources TO draft 10-7-21.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1405 Request to approve USI as the City's fringe benefit consultant for 

2022-2024

 

Fringe Benefits Consultant memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

Page 8City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20126
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=812d2413-3054-47af-bb62-d3f2ba5a3daf.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f0b89d8d-a6f9-468e-94b0-a2343c041e8f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1a1df138-5f43-4e5f-8a8b-1b76200e0d6e.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20127
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d500b86c-a67a-4eec-954a-f214dd320dbe.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20151
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6927dac0-1ec6-47e5-9593-70f65ea7633f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20152
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51187b18-4134-4d18-a49f-cde1b58551af.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fb843734-6a32-46ec-8356-e7b9cbf8b85d.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20153
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c9e4a1d2-4d57-458d-901f-8be17b48f203.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

21-1394 Authorization to Award Outagamie County Rural Service Contract to 

Running Inc.

OC Award Recommendation Memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1395 Approval to Change Agency Ticket Rate

FCTC Approval to change Agency Ticket rate.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

21-1422 Authorization to award contract to SRF Consulting Group for Transit 

Service Planning Support

Award Recommendation Planning Services.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

MINUTES OF THE REDISTRICTING COMMITTEE11.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

21-1443 Ordinance #70-21 City Boundaries & Wards (Redistricting)

 

Ord# 70-21 Ward Redistricting Ordinance -PlanE.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Ordinance be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Joe Prohaska1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 9City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20142
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0f6731bd-6357-4bc0-9071-375d9b6341b6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20143
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6152edc2-7d40-4f01-b323-5d1ffa689952.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20170
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3a4b7a8e-c436-406e-8674-c8e352b5d7fc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=20191
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9ca4efdf-6e57-4c71-89a4-2aea703ff631.pdf


October 20, 2021Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Doran moved, seconded by Alderperson Siebers, that the meeting 

be adjourned at 8:02 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Joe Martin, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson 

Matthew Reed, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Michael Smith, 

Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri 

Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Joe Prohaska1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 10City of Appleton











RESOLUTION 
Relating to Wards of the City of Appleton 

As a result of 2021 Redistricting, the City of Appleton consists of forty-seven (47) Wards that 
contain the census track blocks as listed: 

Ward 1: 

550870101001000, 550870101001001, 550870101001002, 550870101001003, 550870101001004, 
550870101001005, 550870101001006, 550870101001007, 550870101001008, 550870101001009, 
550870101001011, 550870101001012, 550870101001013, 550870101001014, 550870101001015, 
550870101001016, 550870101001017, 550870101001018, 550870101001019, 550870101001034, 
550870101001035, 550870101002002, 550870101002003, 550870101002004, 550870101002005, 
550870101002006, 550870101002007, 550870101002012, 550870101002013, 550870101002014, 
550870101002015, 550870101002016, 550870101002017, 550870101002018, 550870101002019, 
550870101002020, 550870101002021, 550870101002022, 550870101002024, 550870101002025, 
550870101002026, 550870101002027, 550870101002028, 550870101003018, 550870101003019, 
550870101003020, 550870103001000, 550870103001001, 550870103001002, 550870103001003, 
550870103001004, 550870103001005, 550870103001006, 550870103001007, 550870103001008, 
550870103001009, 550870103001010, 550870103001011, 550870103001012, 550870103001013, 
550870103002030, 550870103002031, 550870103002032, 550870103002033, 550870103002034, 
550870103002035, 550870103002036, 550870103002037, 550870103002038, 550870103002039 

Ward 2: 

550870101003002, 550870101003003, 550870101003004, 550870101003005, 550870101003006, 
550870101003012, 550870101003013, 550870101003014, 550870101003015, 550870101003016, 
550870101003017, 550870103002000, 550870103002001, 550870103002002, 550870103002003, 
550870103002004, 550870103002005, 550870103002006, 550870103002007, 550870103002008, 
550870103002009, 550870103002010, 550870103002011, 550870103002012, 550870103002013, 
550870103002014, 550870103002015, 550870103002016, 550870103002017, 550870103002018, 
550870103002019, 550870103002020, 550870103002021, 550870103002022, 550870103002023, 
550870103002024, 550870103002025, 550870103002026, 550870103002027, 550870103002028, 
550870103002029, 550870113001005, 550870113001006, 550870113001007, 550870113001008, 
550870113001009, 550870113001010, 550870113001011, 550870113001012, 550870113002006, 
550870113002007, 550870113002008, 550870113002009, 550870113002010, 550870113004002, 
550870113004003, 550870113004004, 550870113004005, 550870113004006, 550870113004007, 
550870113004008, 550870113004009, 550870113004010, 550870113004013 

 Ward 3: 

550870115013001, 550870115013003, 550870115013004, 550870115013005, 550870115013006, 
550870115013007, 550870115013008, 550870115013009, 550870115013010, 550870115013011, 
550870115013012, 550870115013013, 550870115013014, 550870115013015, 550870115013018, 
550870115013019, 550870115013021, 550870115013024, 550870115013025, 550870115014017, 
550870115014020 

 

 



 

 

Ward 4: 

550870115011000, 550870115011001, 550870115011002, 550870115011003, 550870115011004, 
550870115011005, 550870115011006, 550870115011007, 550870115011008, 550870115011009, 
550870115011010, 550870115011011, 550870115011012, 550870115011013, 550870115011014, 
550870115012000, 550870115012001, 550870115012002, 550870115012003, 550870115012004, 
550870115012005, 550870115012006, 550870115012007, 550870115012008, 550870115012009, 
550870115012010, 550870115013000, 550870115013016, 550870115013017, 550870115013023, 
550870115014000, 550870115014007, 550870115014008, 550870115014018, 550870115014019  

 Ward 5: 

550870101002000, 550870101002001, 550870101002008, 550870101002009, 550870101003000, 
550870101003001, 550870101003007, 550870101003008, 550870101003009, 550870101003010, 
550870101003011, 550870105011000, 550870105011001, 550870105011002, 550870105011003, 
550870105011004, 550870105011005, 550870105011006, 550870105011007, 550870105011008, 
550870105011009, 550870105011010, 550870105011011, 550870105011012, 550870105011013, 
550870105011014, 550870105011015, 550870105011016, 550870105011017, 550870105011018, 
550870105011019, 550870105011020, 550870105011021, 550870105011022, 550870105011023, 
550870105011024, 550870105012000, 550870105012001, 550870105012002, 550870105012003, 
550870105012004, 550870105012005, 550870105012006, 550870105012007, 550870105012008, 
550870105012009, 550870105012010, 550870105012011, 550870105012012, 550870105012013, 
550870105012014, 550870105012015, 550870105012016, 550870105013000, 550870115012011, 
550870115013020, 550870115013022, 550870115013026, 550870115013027, 550870115013028, 
550870115024054, 550870115024060, 550870115024061, 550870115024062 

 Ward 6: 

550870115024058, 550870115024064 

 Ward 7: 

550870106011000, 550870106011001, 550870106011002, 550870106011003, 550870106011004, 
550870106011005, 550870106011006, 550870106011007, 550870106011008, 550870106011009, 
550870106011010, 550870106011011, 550870106011018, 550870106011019, 550870106011020, 
550870106012000, 550870106012001, 550870106012002, 550870106012003, 550870106012004, 
550870106012005, 550870106012006, 550870106012007, 550870106012008, 550870106012009, 
550870106012024, 550870106012025, 550870106012027 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Ward 8: 

550870106012010, 550870106012011, 550870106012012, 550870106012013, 550870106012014_01, 
550870106012015, 550870106012016_00, 550870106012016_01, 550870106012017, 
550870106012018, 550870106012019, 550870106012020_01, 550870106012021, 550870106012022, 
550870106012023, 550870106012026, 550870106013000, 550870106013001, 550870106013002, 
550870106013003, 550870106013013, 550870106013014, 550870106013015, 550870106013018, 
550870106021000, 550870106021001, 550870106021002, 550870106021003, 550870106021004, 
550870106021005, 550870106021006, 550870106021018, 550870106022003, 550870106022004, 
550870106022005, 550870106023003, 550870106023004, 550870106023005, 550870106023017 

Ward 9: 

550870106022000, 550870106022001, 550870106022002, 550870106022011, 550870106022012, 
550870106022013, 550870106022014, 550870106022015, 550870106023000, 550870106023001, 
550870106023002, 550870106023006, 550870106023007, 550870106023008, 550870106023010, 
550870106023011, 550870106023012, 550870106023013, 550870106023014, 550870106023015, 
550870106023016, 550870106023020, 550870106023021, 550870106023022, 550870106023027 

 Ward 10: 

550870106011013, 550870106011014, 550870106011015, 550870106011016, 550870106011017, 
550870106013004, 550870106013005, 550870106013006, 550870106013007, 550870106013008, 
550870106013009, 550870106013010, 550870106013011, 550870106013012, 550870106013016, 
550870106013017, 550870106021007, 550870106021008, 550870106021009, 550870106021010, 
550870106021011, 550870106021012, 550870106021013, 550870106021014 

Ward 11: 

550870107002000, 550870107002001, 550870107002002, 550870107002004, 550870107002005, 
550870107002006, 550870107002007, 550870107002008, 550870107002009, 550870107002013, 
550870107002014, 550870107002015, 550870107002016, 550870107002017, 550870107002018, 
550870107002020, 550870107003000, 550870107003001, 550870107003002, 550870107003003, 
550870107003004, 550870107003005, 550870107003007, 550870107003010, 550870107003011 

Ward 12: 

550870101002010, 550870101002011, 550870101002023, 550870105013001, 550870105013002, 
550870105013003, 550870105013004, 550870105013005, 550870105013006, 550870105013007, 
550870105013008, 550870105013009, 550870105013010, 550870105013011, 550870105013012, 
550870105013013, 550870105013014, 550870105013015, 550870105013016, 550870105013017, 
550870105013018, 550870105013019, 550870105021000, 550870105021001, 550870105021002, 
550870105021003, 550870105021004, 550870105021005, 550870105021006, 550870105021007, 
550870105021008, 550870105021009, 550870105021010, 550870105021011, 550870105021012, 
550870105021013, 550870105021014, 550870105021015, 550870105021016, 550870105021026, 
550870107002003 

 

 



 Ward 13: 

550150203042003, 550150203042004, 550150203042005, 550150203042006, 550150203042007, 
550150203042008, 550150203042009, 550150203042010, 550150203042011, 550150203042012, 
550150203043000, 550150203043001, 550150203043002, 550150203043003, 550150203043004, 
550150203043005, 550150203043006, 550150203043007, 550150203043008, 550150203043010, 
550150203043011, 550150203043012, 550150203043013, 550150203043014 

Ward 14: 

550150208002014, 550150208002015, 550150208002016, 550150208002017, 550150208002026_00, 
550150208002028 

 Ward 15:  

550150203042000, 550150203042001, 550150203042002, 550150207001006_01, 550150207001016, 
550150207001017, 550150207002002, 550150207002003, 550150207002015, 550150208002000_00, 
550150208002001, 550150208002002, 550150208002004, 550150208002005, 550150208002006, 
550150208002007_01, 550150208002008, 550150208002009, 550150208002010_01, 
550150208002011, 550150208002012, 550150208002013, 550150208002018, 550150208002029, 
550150208002030 

 Ward 16: 

550870106022016, 550870106022017, 550870106022018, 550870106022019, 550870106022020, 
550870106023009, 550870106023018, 550870106023019, 550870106023023, 550870106023024, 
550870106023025, 550870106023026, 550870107003006, 550870107003015, 550870107003016 

 Ward 17: 

550870111014000, 550870111014002, 550870111014013, 550870111014015, 550870111014016, 
550870111014017, 550870111014018, 550870111014020, 550870111014021, 550870111014022, 
550870111014023, 550870111014025, 550870111014026, 550870114001000, 550870114001002, 
550870114001003, 550870114001005, 550870114001006, 550870114001007, 550870114001008, 
550870114001009, 550870114001010, 550870114001011, 550870114001012, 550870114001017, 
550870114002000, 550870114002001, 550870114002002, 550870114002003, 550870114002004, 
550870114002005, 550870114002006, 550870114002007, 550870114002008, 550870114002009, 
550870114002010, 550870114002011, 550870114002012, 550870114002013, 550870114003009, 
550870114004008, 550870114005000, 550870114005001, 550870114005002, 550870114005007, 
550870114005008, 550870114005009, 550870114005011, 550870114005012 

 Ward 18: 

550870111011000, 550870111011001, 550870111011002, 550870111011003, 550870111011004, 
550870111011005, 550870111011006, 550870111011007, 550870111011009, 550870111011021, 
550870111014033, 550870111014034, 550870111014035, 550870111014036 

 Ward 19: 

550870113001000, 550870113001001, 550870113001002, 550870113001003, 550870113001004, 
550870113002002, 550870113002003, 550870113002004, 550870113002005, 550870114003000, 
550870114003001, 550870114003002, 550870114003003, 550870114003004, 550870114003005, 



550870114003006, 550870114003007, 550870114003008, 550870114003010, 550870114003011, 
550870114003012, 550870114003013, 550870114003014, 550870114003015, 550870114003016, 
550870114003017, 550870114003018, 550870114003019, 550870114003020, 550870114003021, 
550870114003022 

Ward 20: 

550870125031001, 550870125031002, 550870125031006, 550870125031007, 550870125031009, 
550870125031011, 550870125031012, 550870125031014, 550870125031015, 550870125031016, 
550870125032002, 550870125032003_01, 550870125032005, 550870125032006, 550870125032007, 
550870125032008, 550870125032009, 550870125032010, 550870125032014, 550870125032015, 
550870125041031, 550870125041032, 550870125041034, 550870125041035, 550870125041037, 
550870125041038, 550870125041044, 550870125041045, 550870125041047, 550870125041049, 
550870125041050, 550870125043019 

 Ward 21: 

550870115023000, 550870115023001, 550870115023002, 550870115023003, 550870115023004, 
550870115023005, 550870115023006, 550870115023007, 550870115023008, 550870115023009, 
550870115023010, 550870115023011, 550870115023012, 550870115024026 

Ward 22: 

550870125031020, 550870125031021, 550870125031022, 550870125031024, 550870125031025, 
550870125031028, 550870125031029, 550870125031030, 550870125031031, 550870125031033, 
550870125031034, 550870125031036, 550870125031037, 550870125031038, 550870125031039, 
550870125031041, 550870125031042, 550870125032011, 550870125032012, 550870125032013, 
550870125032016, 550870125032017, 550870125032018, 550870125032019, 550870125032020, 
550870125032021, 550870125032022, 550870125032023, 550870125032024, 550870125032025, 
550870125032026, 550870125032027, 550870125053013, 550870125053014, 550870125053017 

Ward 23: 

550870107001014, 550870107001015, 550870107001016, 550870107001021, 550870107001022, 
550870107001023, 550870107001024, 550870107001025, 550870107001026, 550870107001027, 
550870107001028, 550870107001029, 550870107001030, 550870107002012, 550870107002019, 
550870107004007, 550870107004008, 550870107004013 

Ward 24: 

550870107003008, 550870107003009, 550870107003012, 550870107003013, 550870107003014, 
550870107004000, 550870107004001, 550870107004002, 550870107004003, 550870107004004, 
550870107004005, 550870107004006, 550870107004009, 550870107004010, 550870107004011, 
550870107004012 

Ward 25: 

550150203033000, 550150203033001, 550150203033002, 550150203033003, 550150203033004, 
550150203033005, 550150203033006, 550150203033007, 550150203033008, 550150203033009, 
550150203033010, 550150203033011, 550150203033013, 550150203033014, 550150203033015, 
550150203033016, 550150203033017, 550150203033018, 550150203033019, 550150203033020, 
550150203033021, 550150203033022, 550150203033023, 550150203033024, 550150203033025, 



550150203041000, 550150203041001, 550150203041002, 550150203041003, 550150203041004, 
550150203041005, 550150203041006, 550150203041007, 550150203041008, 550150203041009, 
550150203041010, 550150203041011, 550150203041012, 550150203041013, 550150203041014, 
550150203043009 

Ward 26: 

550870109001006, 550870110012011, 550870110012017, 550870110021016, 550870110021027, 
550870110021028, 550870110021029, 550870110021031, 550870110021033, 550870110021034, 
550870110021035, 550870110021036, 550870109002022, 550870110021030, 550870110012003, 
550870110021026, 550870109002027, 550870110021021, 550870110021015, 550870110021020, 
550870110021022, 550870109001001, 550870109001003, 550870109002007, 550870110012009, 
550870109002012, 550870110022017, 550870109001010, 550870109001004, 550870109001008, 
550870109002004, 550870109001002, 550870109002008, 550870110021025, 550870109002011, 
550870110021024, 550870109001005, 550870109001011, 550870109002009, 550870109002013, 
550870109002010, 550870109001012, 550870109001013, 550870109002014, 550870109002023, 
550870110021023, 550870109002026, 550870109002031, 550870110023033, 550870109001019, 
550870109002003, 550870109002025, 550870109002024, 550870109001015, 550870109001016, 
550870110022020, 550870109001018, 550870110012010, 550870110023034, 550870109001007, 
550870110022021, 550870110022016, 550870109001009, 550870110012006, 550870109001000, 
550870109001014 

Ward 27: 

550870101001031, 550870101001038, 550870101001039, 550870108001000, 550870108001001, 
550870108001004, 550870108001006, 550870108001010, 550870108001015, 550870109002002, 
550870101001037, 550870101001036, 550870110023019, 550870101001043, 550870101001047, 
550870101001049, 550870101001032, 550870101001052, 550870110023017, 550870110023015, 
550870101001045, 550870109002020, 550870101001046, 550870109002029, 550870101001033, 
550870108001011, 550870101001048, 550870109002030, 550870110023014, 550870110023029, 
550870109002000, 550870110023005, 550870110023012, 550870110023016, 550870110023010, 
550870110023020, 550870108001007, 550870109002001, 550870110023027, 550870110023032, 
550870108001012, 550870108001003, 550870109002005, 550870110023041, 550870101001050, 
550870110023036, 550870110023037, 550870108001009, 550870110023043, 550870101001051, 
550870109002028, 550870110023038, 550870110023028, 550870110023011, 550870110023026, 
550870110023022, 550870110023021, 550870110023025, 550870110023031, 550870110023013, 
550870110023040, 550870110023024, 550870110023030, 550870108001005, 550870108001008, 
550870110023039, 550870110023035, 550870110023018, 550870110023023, 550870109002006, 
550870109002015, 550870108001002 

Ward 28: 

550870102001017, 550870112003022, 550870112003023, 550870112003024, 550870102001013, 
550870102001005, 550870102001004, 550870112003021, 550870102001006, 550870102001012, 
550870102001016, 550870102003001, 550870102001007, 550870102001003, 550870102003004, 
550870102002007, 550870102001011, 550870112003020, 550870102001008, 550870102003002, 
550870102001002, 550870102002003, 550870102002000, 550870102002005, 550870102002004, 
550870102003009, 550870102003006, 550870102003007, 550870102003008, 550870102001015, 
550870102002001, 550870102001001, 550870102001014, 550870102003003, 550870102003005, 



550870102001018, 550870112003019, 550870102003010, 550870102003000, 550870102001000, 
550870102001019, 550870102002006, 550870102001009, 550870102001010, 550870102002002 

Ward 29: 

550870101001040, 550870101001041, 550870101001042, 550870102001020, 550870102004005, 
550870102004015, 550870102004016, 550870102005003, 550870102005004, 550870102005007, 
550870111042037, 550870111042038, 550870111042042, 550870111042043, 550870111042045, 
550870111042050, 550870111042051, 550870102005005, 550870102005024, 550870102005023, 
550870102003023, 550870102004013, 550870102005021, 550870102003011, 550870102004006, 
550870102004000, 550870102004019, 550870102003015, 550870102005013, 550870102004020, 
550870102004012, 550870102005001, 550870102005014, 550870102004014, 550870102003012, 
550870102005011, 550870102003021, 550870102005022, 550870102003017, 550870102003020, 
550870102004007, 550870102005010, 550870102002010, 550870102005006, 550870102004003, 
550870111042044, 550870102003014, 550870102003019, 550870102004002, 550870102003013, 
550870102004010, 550870102005008, 550870102003018, 550870102004001, 550870102004008, 
550870102005009, 550870102004004, 550870102003016, 550870102005018, 550870102005019, 
550870102004018, 550870102005015, 550870102005016, 550870102004011, 550870102005017, 
550870102005020, 550870102002013, 550870102004009, 550870102005000, 550870102002011, 
550870102003022, 550870102005012, 550870102004017, 550870102002012, 550870102005002, 
550870102002008, 550870102002009 

Ward 30: 

550870110013000, 550870110013001, 550870110013010, 550870110013011, 550870110021000, 
550870110021001, 550870110021002, 550870110021003, 550870110021004, 550870110021005, 
550870110021006, 550870110022000, 550870110022001, 550870110022002, 550870110021014, 
550870110022008, 550870110022010, 550870110022006, 550870110022015, 550870110022019, 
550870110022013, 550870110022003, 550870110022004, 550870110022007, 550870110022014, 
550870110022005, 550870110022009, 550870110021007, 550870110022012, 550870110021019, 
550870110021013, 550870110022018, 550870110022011, 550870110021012, 550870110021018, 
550870110021009, 550870110021011, 550870110021017, 550870110021010, 550870110021008 

Ward 31: 

550870101001024, 550870101001028, 550870101001044, 550870105021017, 550870105021018, 
550870105021027, 550870105021028, 550870105021032, 550870105021033, 550870101001026, 
550870101001021, 550870101001023, 550870105021021, 550870101001020, 550870101001025, 
550870105021020, 550870101001027, 550870105021031, 550870105021030, 550870105021029, 
550870105021022, 550870105021024, 550870105021019, 550870101001022, 550870105021023, 
550870105021025 

Ward 32: 

550870107001000, 550870107001001, 550870107001002, 550870107001003, 550870107001005, 
550870107001007, 550870107001011, 550870107001020, 550870108002000, 550870108002001, 
550870108002002, 550870110023004, 550870110023006, 550870110023007, 550870110023008, 
550870110023009, 550870107001006, 550870101001029, 550870107001010, 550870110023003, 
550870101001010, 550870110023002, 550870108002012, 550870110023042, 550870110023001, 
550870107001013, 550870108002010, 550870107001018, 550870107002011, 550870108002008, 



550870107001017, 550870107002010, 550870107001019, 550870107001008, 550870108002006, 
550870107001012, 550870108001014, 550870110023000, 550870108002004, 550870108002005, 
550870108001016, 550870108001013, 550870108002007, 550870108002011, 550870108002009, 
550870107001004, 550870107001009, 550870108002003, 550870101001030 

Ward 33: 

551390025001026, 551390025002001, 551390025002008, 551390025002012, 551390025004019, 
551390025004020, 551390026021002, 551390026021012, 551390025002002, 551390025002011, 
551390025001003, 551390025002007, 551390025001012, 551390025004013, 551390025002014, 
551390025004014, 551390025004016, 551390025004007, 551390025004006, 551390025002017, 
551390025004008 

Ward 34: 

551390025003000, 551390025004003, 551390025004004, 551390025004002, 551390025004000 

Ward 35: 

550870111012001, 550870111012007, 550870111011020, 550870111011013, 550870112003000, 
550870112003001, 550870111011012, 550870112003005, 550870111012006, 550870111012009, 
550870112003004, 550870111012005, 550870111012014, 550870111011014, 550870111011019, 
550870111012004, 550870111011008, 550870111012008, 550870111011011, 550870111012013, 
550870111013001, 550870111012010, 550870111012012, 550870112002005, 550870111012011, 
550870112002000, 550870111012002, 550870111011017, 550870111013005, 550870111013003, 
550870111011016, 550870111013004, 550870112002006, 550870111011015, 550870111011010, 
550870111012000, 550870112003006, 550870111013006, 550870112003003, 550870111013008, 
550870112003002, 550870111011018, 550870111013007, 550870111013002, 550870111012003, 
550870111013000 

Ward 36: 

550870112001021, 550870112001020, 550870112001014, 550870112001019, 550870112002015, 
550870112001000, 550870112001018, 550870112002001, 550870112002004, 550870112001001, 
550870112001013, 550870112002002, 550870112001002, 550870112001012, 550870112002003, 
550870112001017, 550870112001004, 550870112001009, 550870112001016, 550870112002009, 
550870112001011, 550870112001008, 550870112001015, 550870112001010, 550870112002008, 
550870112002014, 550870112001006, 550870112001003, 550870112001007, 550870112001005 

Ward 37: 

550870112003009, 550870112003010, 550870112003016, 550870112003015, 550870112003008, 
550870112003011, 550870112003017, 550870112003014, 550870112003007, 550870112002012, 
550870112003012, 550870112003018, 550870112002007, 550870112003013, 550870112002010, 
550870112002013, 550870112002011 

Ward 38: 

550870129021029, 550870129021040, 550870129041030, 550870129041033, 550870129041038, 
550870129041039, 550870129041025, 550870129041045, 550870129041027, 550870129041023, 
550870129041028, 550870129041031, 550870129041040, 550870129021036, 550870129041034_02, 
550870129041041, 550870129041022, 550870129041029, 550870129021035 



Ward 39: 

550870125041003, 550870125041005, 550870125041006_01, 550870125041012_01, 
550870125041014, 550870125041026, 550870125041027, 550870125041028, 550870125041029, 
550870125041030, 550870125042011, 550870125043008, 550870125041019, 550870125041007, 
550870125041010, 550870125041048, 550870125042005, 550870125041002, 550870125042000, 
550870125042004, 550870125042001, 550870125042007, 550870125041022, 550870125041004, 
550870125041021, 550870133003004, 550870125042002, 550870125042003, 550870125041023, 
550870125042006, 550870125041020, 550870133003006 

Ward 40: 

550870133003026, 550870133003027, 550870133003029_01, 550870133003053, 550870133003028, 
550870133003013, 550870133003010, 550870133003016, 550870133003014, 550870133003052, 
550870133003012, 550870133003011, 550870133003015, 550870133003009 

Ward 41: 

550870115024002, 550870115024003, 550870115024004, 550870115024005, 550870115024015, 
550870115024016, 550870115024017, 550870115024018, 550870115024019, 550870115024020, 
550870115024021, 550870115024024, 550870115024025, 550870115024027, 550870115024049, 
550870115024050, 550870115024052, 550870115024056, 550870125042010, 550870125043011, 
550870125043012, 550870125043014, 550870125043015, 550870125043020, 550870125042009, 
550870125042019, 550870125042020, 550870125043006, 550870125042021, 550870125042016, 
550870125043005, 550870125042013, 550870125043017, 550870125043004, 550870125042015, 
550870125042014, 550870125042008, 550870125043002, 550870125043001, 550870125042017, 
550870125043016, 550870115024048, 550870125042018, 550870125043010, 550870125042012, 
550870125043000, 550870125043003 

Ward 42: 

550870113002000, 550870113003001, 550870114002016, 550870113003004, 550870115014014, 
550870115014012, 550870115014022, 550870115014004, 550870114002018, 550870113004011, 
550870115014023, 550870113003016, 550870113003007, 550870115014006, 550870113002001, 
550870114002017, 550870113002011, 550870113003005, 550870115014003, 550870113003017, 
550870114002015, 550870114002020, 550870114002014, 550870114002021, 550870114002024, 
550870115014005, 550870115014010, 550870115014013, 550870115014011, 550870115014015, 
550870113003002, 550870115014009, 550870113004000, 550870114002022, 550870115022005, 
550870114002025, 550870113003000, 550870115013002, 550870115014021, 550870113003011, 
550870113003014, 550870113003003, 550870113003008, 550870113003015, 550870113004012, 
550870115014016, 550870113003013, 550870115014002, 550870113003006, 550870113003009, 
550870114002026, 550870114002023, 550870113003012, 550870115022004, 550870113003010, 
550870115022007, 550870115022009, 550870114002019, 550870113004001, 550870115014001, 
550870115022008 

Ward 43: 

550870115023025, 550870115023026, 550870115023013, 550870115023024, 550870115023015, 
550870115023022, 550870115021002, 550870115022001, 550870115021004, 550870115023027, 
550870115021006, 550870115022006, 550870115023019, 550870115021010, 550870115021007, 
550870115021009, 550870115022002, 550870115023017, 550870115021003, 550870115021005, 



550870115021008, 550870115023021, 550870115022010, 550870115023020, 550870115023016, 
550870115022003, 550870115023018, 550870115023023, 550870115022000, 550870115021000, 
550870115021001, 550870115023014 

Ward 44: 

550150208001000, 550150203031002, 550150203031014, 550150203031006, 550150203031013, 
550150203031010, 550150203031005, 550150203031001, 550150203031017, 550150203031019, 
550150203031020, 550150203031009, 550150203031015, 550150203031024, 550150203031003, 
550150203031027, 550150203032008, 550150203031018, 550150203031026, 550150203032007, 
550150203032012, 550150203031012, 550150203031023, 550150203031016, 550150203031022, 
550150203031025, 550150203033012, 550150203032011, 550150203031004, 550150203032009, 
550150203031011, 550150203032004, 550150203031021, 550150203032010, 550150203032003, 
550150203032006, 550150203032000, 550150203031000, 550150203031028, 550150203031007, 
550150203032005, 550150203031008, 550150203032001, 550150203032002 

Ward 45: 

550150208001009, 550150208001011, 550150208001016, 550150208001022, 550150208001023, 
550150208001006, 550150208001028, 550150208001005, 550150208001014, 550150208001035, 
550150208001003, 550150208001008, 550150208001024, 550150208001015, 550150208001034, 
550150208003003, 550150208001030, 550150208001036, 550150208001027, 550150208001004, 
550150208001025, 550150208001019, 550150208001033, 550150208001010, 550150208001013, 
550150208001020, 550150208001029, 550150208001007, 550150208001031, 550150208001002, 
550150208001021, 550150208003004, 550150208001032, 550150208001026, 550150208001012, 
550150208001001 

Ward 46: 

 550150203082009, 550150208002051, 550150208002044, 550150208002049, 550150208002036, 
550150208002050, 550150208002035, 550150208003001, 550150208002034, 550150208002020, 
550150208002022, 550150208002024, 550150208003000, 550150208001018, 550150208002025, 
550150208002021, 550150208002046, 550150208002045, 550150208003002, 550150208002019, 
550150208001017 

Ward 47: 

550150203081042 

 

Dated:  November 3, 2020 

 

             
Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor    Attest: Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



































1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pursuant to Section 9-77 of the Municipal Code and Section V. Procedures of the current General Policy 

Statement on Beer/Liquor Licensing, the Community and Economic Development Department 

investigation determines the following: 

 

Outdoor Dining Request With or Without Alcohol Service 

1. Currently, the site has 128 off-street parking spaces to accommodate customer and employee 

parking for the Atlas Mill building and Fratello’s Riverfront Restaurant.  In accordance with 

Sections 23-42(c) and 23-172(m) of the Zoning Ordinance, all existing off-street parking spaces 

shall be maintained as parking spaces.  The proposed expansion of the outdoor dining into the 10 

off-street parking spaces (highlighted green) located on the west side of the building will cause a 

deficiency of 10 parking spaces on the site.   

 

2. The proposed expansion of the outdoor dining into the interior parking lot landscape island 

(highlighted green) located on the west side of the building will cause a deficiency in the required 

amount of interior parking lot landscape islands.  In accordance with Section 23-172(f)(1)a. of the 

Zoning Ordinance, the interior parking lot landscape islands shall be maintained as is for their 

intended purpose. 

 

Recommendation:  Based on the above findings, staff recommends the request for alcohol license 

permanent premise amendment for the expansion of the outdoor dining with or without alcohol service 

within the 10 off-street parking spaces and the interior parking lot landscape islands (highlighted green) 

be DENIED because request causes the property to be NOT incompliance with Section(s) 23-42(c), 23-

172(m) and 23-172(f)(1)a. of the Zoning Ordinance as specified above.  

 

Interior Expansion Within Unit 1 

3. Special Use Permit #01-06 was transferred to River Tyme Bistro on January 20, 2020 (see 

attached).  Condition Number 2 of said transfer states, “ Any future expansions into any area of 

building/property not part of this approval for the purpose of serving and/or consumption of 

REPORT TO SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

Meeting Date:  October 27, 2021 

 

Premise Amendment Request Received from City Clerk’s Office: 

October 11, 2021 

 

Item:  Reserve "Class B" Liquor and Class "B" Beer License Permanent 

Premise Amendment Application for Fox River Boat Holdings Co. d/b/a 

River Tyme Bistro, Candice Mortara, Agent, Located at 425 W. Water 

Street Unit 100  

 

From:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



2 | P a g e  

 

alcohol will require a new Special Use Permit application or a minor amendment request to be 

applied for and approved.” 

 

Note:  A new Special Use Permit has not been applied for by the owner/applicant.  Approval of a 

new Special Use Permit for a restaurant with alcohol sales is required prior to the issuance of 

the amended liquor license. 

  

Section III of the General Policy Statement on Beer/Liquor Licensing states, “Where required, no 

corporation, partnership or individual will be issued a beer/liquor license for the premises until a 

Special Use Permit application has been submitted.  This would allow for the Community and 

Economic Development Department to review and determine whether or not the applicant must 

apply for and receive approval of a Special Use Permit pursuant to the current Zoning Code.” 

 

Recommendation:  Based on the above findings, the owner/applicant shall apply for and receive 

approval of a new Special Use Permit from the Common Council prior to the issuance of the 

request to expand alcohol service into the remaining area of Unit 1 located inside the building and 

the expanded outdoor premises area in compliance with all applicable Municipal Codes.   

 

We recommend applicant/owner contact the Community and Economic Development Department 

at (920) 832-6468 to discuss the Special Use Permit approval process and assist with working out 

a solution to develop a proposal that satisfies the applicable Municipal Code regulations regarding 

the outdoor dining area. 

 

















































 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner(s)/Elector(s):  Philip C. and Beverly M. Ziegler  

 

Address/Town Where Property is Located:  N2883 County Road EE - Town of Center 

 

Parcel Number:  040097800 - Town of Center  

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The Owner(s)/Elector(s) are requesting direct annexation by unanimous approval 

where they reside pursuant to Section 66.0217(2), Wisconsin State Statutes of land currently located in 

the Town of Center, Outagamie County. 

 

Purpose for Annexation:  To allow the existing single-family residence to be connected to the City 

water system.   

 

Population of Such Territory:  2 

 

Annexation Area:  1.4407 acres m/l 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

The annexation petition for direct annexation by unanimous approval where owners and electors reside 

was filed with the City Clerk’s office on September 15, 2021.  State Statutes does require that the 

Department of Administration (DOA) review all annexation petitions within a county having a population 

of 50,000 or more to determine if the petition is in the public interest.  The City must allow a 20-day 

statutory review period, which starts when the Wisconsin Department of Administration (DOA) receives 

the annexation application materials and fee.  The DOA received the annexation application materials and  

fee on September 17, 2021, so this requirement will be satisfied prior to Common Council taking action at 

their November 3, 2021 meeting. 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  October 13, 2021 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  November 3, 2021 

 

Anticipated Date Annexation Effective:  November 9, 2021 at 12:01 a.m. 

 

Item:  Petition for Direct Annexation by Unanimous Approval Where 

Owners/Electors Reside – Ziegler Mackville Road & EE Annexation 

 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community 

and Economic  

Development 



Ziegler Mackville Road & EE Annexation 

October 13, 2021 

Page 2 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

City staff completed the Annexation Feasibility Study for this annexation request and identified the 

following: 

 

 The City of Appleton does not have a boundary agreement with the Town of Center. 

 

 In the absence of a boundary agreement, property tax payment to the Town of Center is required.  

In accordance with Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0217(14), the City of Appleton is required 

to pay annually to the town, for 5 years, an amount equal to the amount of property taxes that the 

town levied on the annexed territory, as shown by the tax roll under Wisconsin State Statute 

Section 70.65, in the year in which the annexation is final. 

 The subject property is developed with the single-family residence. 

 The subject property is located within City’s Growth Area Boundary.  

 The City can provide necessary City services, including but not limited to water, police, fire, 

garbage/recycling to the subject property.  However, City sanitary sewer and storm sewer main 

extensions would be required to serve this property.  The City currently does not have these utility 

extensions included in the 5-year plan or budget.  The subject property will continue to use its on-

site private septic system (in-ground gravity system).  

 The City has a 16-inch water main already installed along the west side of Ballard Road.  

Approval of the annexation is required before the subject property could connect to the City water. 

 

 The area proposed for annexation is contiguous to the existing City boundary located to the east of 

the annexation area.  The subject property connects to the City of Appleton at the Ballard Road 

right-of-way.   

 

 The owner is requesting the City Plan Commission initiate a rezoning application for the 

annexation area from temporary AG Agricultural District to a zoning classification of R-1B 

Single-Family District.   

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses: 

 

North: Town of Center.  General Agricultural District, the adjacent land use to the north is currently 

agricultural land. 

 

South: Town of Center.  General Agricultural District, the adjacent land use to the south is currently 

developed as single-family residential. 

 



Ziegler Mackville Road & EE Annexation 

October 13, 2021 

Page 3 

 

 

West:   Town of Center.  General Agricultural District, the adjacent land use to the west is currently 

developed as single-family residential. 

 

East:  City of Appleton.  R-1B Single-family District, the adjacent land use to the east is currently 

undeveloped but subdivided for single-family residential.  

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton 2010-2030 Comprehensive Plan Map 

identifies the subject area as future One/Two–Family residential.  The proposed annexation is consistent 

with the following goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

OBJECTIVE 5.3 Housing and Neighborhoods: 

Provide a range of housing options that meet the needs and appeal to all segments of the community and 

allows residents to age in place. 

Policy 5.3.3  Plan for a supply of developable land suitable for residential development. 

 

OBJECTIVE 10.1 Land Use:  

Provide an adequate supply of suitable land meeting the demand for development of various land uses. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the September 21, 2021 TRG Agenda.  

No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

Fire Department Comments:  Projected response capability to this address will become similar with 

adjacent development, across Ballard Road, sometimes referred to as Apple Hill Farms.  Also, note that 

Appleton and Grand Chute have a mutual aid agreement, so if this property comes into Appleton, Grand 

Chute might also respond, depending on circumstances.  Appleton Fire recommends to this property 

owner, because of potential for long emergency response times (due to travel distance), either a monitored 

smoke alarm system or residential fire sprinklers, similar as with Apple Hill Farms.  Appleton Fire will 

not require that. 

 

City Clerk Comments:  Under the advice of the Legislative Technology Services Bureau, it is advised to 

wait on this annexation until after the redistricting process is complete and a new ward plan is in place.  

Therefore, the annexation ordinance will appear on the November 3, 2021 Common Council meeting 

agenda. 

 

 

 



Ziegler Mackville Road & EE Annexation 

October 13, 2021 

Page 4 
 

FUTURE ACTIONS___________________________________________________________________ 

 Per Section 23-65(e) of the Municipal Code, a temporary zoning classification of AG Agricultural 

District is assigned to newly annexed territory, with the rezoning process taking place after the 

subject site has been annexed to the City.  All territory annexed to the City is assigned a zoning 

classification as recommended by Plan Commission.  

 

 The Plan Commission shall consider the following criteria in selection of an appropriate zoning 

district for the annexed land:  

 

- The existing land uses within the territory to be annexed; 

 

- The surrounding land uses that exist on adjacent properties regardless of municipal boundary 

lines; 

 

- The Comprehensive Plan of the City. 

 

 The owners are requesting that Plan Commission initiate a rezoning for the subject property from 

temporary AG Agricultural District to zoning classification of R-1B Single-Family District.  A 

rezoning initiated directly by Plan Commission will be processed in accordance with Section 23-

65(d), Zoning Map Amendments, which includes review and action by the Common Council.  

This request is anticipated to be scheduled for an informal public hearing at the October 27, 2021 

Plan Commission meeting.   

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends that the Ziegler Mackville Road & EE Annexation, as shown on the attached maps, BE 

APPROVED with the following stipulation: 

 

1. The Plan Commission initiate the rezoning for the subject property from temporary AG 

Agricultural District to the zoning classification of R-1B Single-Family District, pursuant to 

Section 23-65(d)(1) of the Municipal Code. 

 



October 04, 2021 PETITION FILE NO. 14442

KAMI LYNCH, CLERK
CITY OF APPLETON
100 N APPLETON ST
APPLETON, WI 54911-4702

AMY L OLSON, CLERK
TOWN OF CENTER
N3990 STATE ROAD 47
APPLETON, WI 54913-8484

Subject: ZIEGLER MACKVILLE ROAD & EE ANNEXATION

The proposed annexation submitted to our office on September 17, 2021, has been reviewed and found to be in the 
public interest. In determining whether an annexation is in the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the 
Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with the 
annexing village or city…." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The statute also 
requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide needed municipal services to 
the territory. The subject petition is for territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguous to the CITY OF 
APPLETON, which is able to provide needed municipal services.

The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. Stats., 
which states:

"The clerk of a city or village which has annexed shall file immediately with the secretary of administration a 
certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each company that provides any utility 
service in the area that is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance with the register of deeds and file a signed 
copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school district..."

State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through failure to file 
with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, including a statement 
certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR number 14442 with your ordinance. 
Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on "Help on How to Submit Municipal Records". 
Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin 
Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary Review, PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701-1645.

The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2516
Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review.

Sincerely,

Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review cc: petitioner

TONY EVERS

JOEL BRENNAN

GOVERNOR

SECRETARY

Municipal Boundary Review
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview

http://mds.wi.gov/
mailto:mds@wi.gov
http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2516
http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2516


1-9203-30

1-9203-31

1-9310-2

1-8303-20

1-9203-32

1-9203-33

1-9203-34

1-9203-35

1-9203-36

1-9203-37

1-9203-38

1-9203-96

74
64

74
70

74
63

7477

7483

74
89

74
95

7476

7469

75
000979-2

1-9203-35

1-9203-31

1-9203-32 1-9203-36

09
77

-2

1-9203-96

0977-1

1-9310-2

0977-6

0977-7

0977

1-9203-381-9203-30

0977-5

0977-4

1-8303-20
0979-1

1-9203-33

1-9203-34

0979

0977-8

1-9203-37

0978

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

MACKVILLE RD

ZIE
GL

ER
 C

T

E MACKVILLE RD

AG

R-1B

AG

NC

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

MACKVILLE RD

E WERNER RD

Annexation
Ziegler Mackville Road & EE

Town of Center
Zoning Map

Temporary AG Agricultural

Subject Area

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
10-13-2021 ± 0 100 20050 Feet

CITY LIMITS

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS

Temporary AG Agricultual District



1-9203-34

09
77

-2

0977-4

0978

0979

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

MACKVILLE RD E MACKVILLE RD

Annexation
Ziegler Mackville Road & EE

Town of Center 
Aerial Map

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
10-13-2021

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS

± 0 100 20050 Feet







 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner:  City of Appleton 

 

Initiated by:  Department of Public Works - Engineering Division 

 

Town Where Property is Located:  Town of Grand Chute 

 

Parcel Numbers:  Part of 101157000 and 101158200 - Town of Grand Chute 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The Owner is requesting direct annexation by unanimous approval where no 

electors reside pursuant to Section 66.0217(2), Wisconsin State Statutes of land currently located in the 

Town of Grand Chute, Outagamie County. 

 

Purpose for Annexation:  To allow the City of Appleton to extend a public street, utilities and construct 

a stormwater pond within the territory proposed for annexation. 

 

Population of Such Territory:  0 

 

Annexation Area:  12.6622 acres m/l 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

Officially mapped Lightning Drive from East Edgewood Drive to Broadway Drive went into effect on 

October 23, 2001.  

 

The annexation petition for direct annexation by unanimous approval where no electors reside was filed 

with the City Clerk’s office on September 17, 2021.  State Statutes does require that the Department of 

Administration (DOA) review all annexation petitions within a county having a population of 50,000 or 

more to determine if the petition is in the public interest.  The City must allow a 20-day statutory review  

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  October 13, 2021 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  November 3, 2021 

 

Anticipated Date Annexation Effective:  November 9, 2021 at 12:01 a.m. 

 

Item:  Petition for Direct Annexation by Unanimous Approval Where No 

Electors Reside – Lightning Drive & C.T.H JJ (Right-of-Way) Annexation 

 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community 

and Economic  

Development 



Lightning Drive & C.T.H JJ (Right-of-Way) Annexation  

October 13, 2021 

Page 2 

 

period, which starts when the Wisconsin Department of Administration (DOA) receives the annexation 

application materials and fee.  The DOA received the annexation application materials and fee on 

September 21, 2021, so this requirement will be satisfied prior to Common Council taking action at their 

November 3, 2021 meeting. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

The Community and Economic Development Department staff has reviewed the annexation petition and 

identifies the following: 

 

 The City of Appleton does have a boundary agreement with the Town of Grand Chute. 

 

 The subject property is undeveloped agricultural land and developed with a stormwater pond, 

public roads, and underground utilities.  

 The subject property is located within the City’s Growth Area Boundary.  

 The City is planning to install sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water infrastructure, extend 

Lightning Drive to the north, and construct a stormwater pond within the annexation area.  This 

will be a multiyear project starting in 2022.  

 

 The area proposed for annexation is contiguous to the existing City boundary on all sides of the 

annexation area.   

 

 Future Lightning Drive is classified as a collector street on the City’s Arterial/Collector Plan.     

 

 The owner is requesting the City Plan Commission initiate a rezoning application for the 

annexation area from temporary AG Agricultural District to a zoning classification of P-I Public 

Institutional District.   

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses: 

 

North:  Town of Grand Chute.  AGD – General Agricultural District, the adjacent land use to the north is 

currently agricultural land. 

 

South: City of Appleton.  P-I Public Institutional District, the adjacent land use to the south is currently 

developed as single-family residential, agricultural buildings, and undeveloped land. 

 

West:   City of Appleton.  C-2 General Commercial District and R-1B Single-family District, the adjacent 

land use to the west is currently undeveloped commercial and single-family residential land. 

  

 

 



Lightning Drive & C.T.H JJ (Right-of-Way) Annexation  

October 13, 2021 

Page 3 

 

 

West:  Town of Grand Chute.  AGD – General Agricultural District, the adjacent land use to the west is 

currently agricultural land. 

 

East:   Town of Grand Chute.  AGD – General Agricultural District, the adjacent land use to the east is 

currently agricultural land. 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton 2010-2030 Comprehensive Plan Map 

identifies the annexation area as Officially Mapped Lightning Drive, Ponds/Water, Public Institutional, 

One/Two Family Residential and Agricultural/Private Open Space.  The proposed annexation is 

consistent with the following goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.  The next time 

staff initiates amendments to the future land use map, the City limit line will be amended to reflect the 

exterior boundary line of this annexation. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 4 – Transportation 

Appleton will support a comprehensive transportation network that provides viable options for 

pedestrian, bicycle, highway, rail, and air transportation, both locally and within the region. 

 

OBJECTIVE 6.1 Transportation: 

Plan for the safe and efficient movement of vehicles on local and regional roads. 

 

OBJECTIVE 6.8 Transportation: 

Implement transportation improvements which also support the City’s desired land use, housing and 

neighborhood goals, objectives, and policies. 

 

OBJECTIVE 7.5 Utilities and Community Facilities: 

Implement effective stormwater management practices. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item appeared on the August 31, 2021 TRG Agenda.  

No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

City Clerk Comments:  Under the advice of the Legislative Technology Services Bureau, it is advised to 

wait on this annexation until after the redistricting process is complete and a new ward plan is in place.  

Therefore, the annexation ordinance will appear on the November 3, 2021 Common Council meeting 

agenda. 

 



 

Lightning Drive & C.T.H JJ (Right-of-Way) Annexation  

October 13, 2021 

Page 4 

 

FUTURE ACTIONS___________________________________________________________________ 

 Per Section 23-65(e) of the Municipal Code, a temporary zoning classification of AG Agricultural 

District is assigned to newly annexed territory, with the rezoning process taking place after the 

subject site has been annexed to the City.  All territory annexed to the City is assigned a zoning 

classification as recommended by Plan Commission.  

 

 The Plan Commission shall consider the following criteria in selection of an appropriate zoning 

district for the annexed land:  

 

- The existing land uses within the territory to be annexed; 

 

- The surrounding land uses that exist on adjacent properties regardless of municipal boundary 

lines; 

 

- The Comprehensive Plan of the City. 

 

 The owner is requesting that Plan Commission initiate a rezoning for the subject property from 

temporary AG Agricultural District to the zoning classification of P-I Public Institutional District.  

A rezoning initiated directly by Plan Commission will be processed in accordance with Section 

23-65(d), Zoning Map Amendments, which includes review and action by the Common Council. 

This request is anticipated to be scheduled for an informal public hearing at the October 27, 2021 

Plan Commission meeting.   

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends that the Lightning Drive & C.T.H JJ (Right-of-Way) Annexation, as shown on the 

attached maps, BE APPROVED with the following stipulation: 

 

1. The Plan Commission initiate the rezoning for the subject property from temporary AG 

Agricultural District to the zoning classification of P-I Public Institutional District, pursuant to 

Section 23-65(d)(1) of the Municipal Code. 

 



1-7250-3

1-8301-1

1-8301-6

1-8308-75

1-8308-66

1-8308-65

1-8
308-

64
1-8

308
-63

1-8308-62

1-8308-61

1-8308-60

1-8308-59

1-8308-58

1-8308-57

1-8308-44

1-8308-42

1-8308-41

1-8308-43

1-8
30

8-4
9

1-8
30

8-5
0

1-8
30

8-5
1

1-8
30

8-5
2

1-8
30

8-5
3

1-8
30

8-5
4

1-8
30

8-5
5

1-8
30

8-5
6 1-8308-81

1-8308-82

1-8308-83

1-8308-84

1-8308-85

1-8309-94

1-8309-17

1-8309-16

1-8309-25

1-8309-31

1-8309-18

1-8309-19

1-8309-15

1-8309-20

1-8309-24

1-8309-33

1-8309-21

1-8309-92

1-8309-22

1-8309-32

1-8309-14

1-8309-30

1-8309-91

1-8309-23

1-8309-40

1-8309-55

1-8309-26

1-8309-12

1-8309-27

1-8309-28

1-83
09-2

9

1-8309-45

1-8309-13

1-8309-37

1-8309-38

1-8309-51

1-8309-43
1-8309-44

1-8309-34

1-8309-10

1-8309-56

1-8309-46

1-8309-47

1-8309-61

1-8309-48

1-8309-62

1-8309-60

1-8309-11

1-8309-49

1-8309-59

1-8309-58

1-8309-57
1-8309-50

1-8
309-4

1

1-8309-63

1-8309-52

1-8309-36

1-8309-39

1-8309-84

1-8309-54

1-8309-83

1-8309-35

1-8309-80

1-8309-79

1-83
09-4

2

1-8309-85

1-8309-86

1-8309-82

1-8309-64

1-8309-89

1-8309-81

1-8309-87

1-8309-88

1-8309-77

1-8309-53

1-8309-90

1-8309-78

P-I

R-1B AG

C-2

R-
1B

E EDGEWOOD DR

E B
AL

DE
AG

LE
 D

R

N 
KE

ST
RE

L C
IR

E HARRIER LA

E EDGEWOOD DR

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD CTY TK E

N 
FR

EN
CH

 R
D

E BROADWAY DR

N 
LIG

HT
NI

NG
 D

R

N 
PR

OV
ID

EN
CE

 AV

CH
ER

RY
VA

LE
 AV

N 
KU

RE
Y D

R Annexation
Lightning Drive & C.T.H. JJ (Right-of-Way)

Town of Grand Chute
Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject Area

City Limits

Cit
y L

im
it

±0 200 400100 FeetCity Plan Commission
10-13-2021

City Limits

City Limits

City Limits
Temporary AG Agricultural District

Temporary AG Agricultual District



E EDGEWOOD DR

E B
AL

DE
AG

LE
 D

R

N 
KE

ST
RE

L C
IR

E HARRIER LA

N OSPREY DR Annexation
Lightning Drive & C.T.H. JJ (Right-of-Way)

Town of Grand Chute
Aerial Map

Subject Area

City Limits
Cit

y L
im

its

City Plan Commission
10-13-2021







CENTER OF SECTION 6,

T 21 N, R 18 E, TOP OF

MONUMENT GONE,

FOUND BASE

TOWN OF  GRAND CHUTE

CITY OF APPLETON

CITY OF APPLETON

S 1/4 CORNER

OF SECTION 6,

T 21 N, R 18 E

PROVIDENCE    AVENUE

L
I
G

H
T

N
I
N

G
 
 
 
 
D

R
I
V

E

C
I
T

Y
 
 
O

F
 
 
A

P
P

L
E

T
O

N

S

5

4

°

2

1

'

4

3

"

W

1

2

7

.

6

0

'

N

5

8

°

5

1

'

1

3

"

E

1

2

7

.

6

0

'

N

5

6

°

3

6

'

2

8

"

E

3

0

0

.

6

3

'

7
0
'

7

0

'

7
0

'
 
(
8

0
'
)

OFFICIALLY   MAPPED

Lawrence G. Petersen, Trustee of the Lawrence

G. Petersen Revocable Trust

Parcel No.101158200

Unplatted Lands

E.80 rods of the S.45 Ac of SW 1/4 less lands

sold, Section 6, T21N, R18E, Town of Grand

Chute

Apple Tree Appleton

Four LLC

Parcel No.101157000

Unplatted Lands

NE/SW, less lands

annexed to City of

Appleton,Section

6,T21N, R18E,

Town of Grand Chute

C1

C4

C2

C3

S

5

6

°

3

6

'

2

8

"

W

3

0

0

.

6

3

'

T

.

 

G

R

A

N

D

 

C

H

U

T

E

C

.

 

A

P

P

L

E

T

O

N

TOWN OF  GRAND CHUTE

CITY OF APPLETON

T
O

W
N

 
O

F
 
 
G

R
A

N
D

 
C

H
U

T
E

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
P

L
E

T
O

N

T

O

W

N

 

O

F

 

 

G

R

A

N

D

 

C

H

U

T

E

C

I

T

Y

 

O

F

 

A

P

P

L

E

T

O

N

(66' r/w)

South line of the Fractional SW 

1

4

, Section 6, T21N,

R18E, S89°44'38"W 2996.27'

H

A

R

R

I

E

R

L

I

G

H

T

N

I

N

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
F

U
T

U
R

E

E
a
s
t
 
l
i
n
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
F

r
a
c
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
S

W
 

1

4

,
 
S

e
c
t
i
o
n
 
6
,
 
T

2
1
N

,

R
1
8
E

,
 
N

0
0
°
2
7
'
1
4
"
E

 
 
 
2
5
9
9
.
6
4
'

S89°44'38"W       1312.94'

N
0

0
°
0

7
'
5

8
"
E

1
9

2
.
7

1
'

S89°27'19"E

70.00'

S
0

0
°
0

7
'
5

8
"
W

1
9

2
.
2

0
'

N89°44'38"E       751.25'

N89°44'38"E

214.97'

S
0

0
°
2

8
'
2

6
"
W

2
6

6
.
1

9
'

C7

C5

S00°28'26"W

35.00'

S00°27'14"W

61.25'

S00°15'22"W

41.25'

N
0

0
°
0

9
'
1

9
"
W

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6

9
5

.
7

5
'

N00°27'27"E

27.61'

S79°18'14"E

46.36'

D

R

I

V

E

C6

SW CORNER OF

SECTION 6,

T21N, R18E

N56°36'28"E

28.01'

S56°36'28"W

85.86'

ANNEXATION AREA

 551,568 Sq. Ft.

12.6622 Acres

T
O

W
N

 
O

F
 
 
G

R
A

N
D

 
C

H
U

T
E

TPP 0000-

0G-17-4.02

L

E

.

N89°51'14"W

156.83'

N

1

3

°

5

2

'
5

4

"

E

 
 
3

0

7

.
1

8

'

N
0
3
°
3
0
'
3
5
"
W

1
8
8
.
3
9
'

Outlot 10

Apple Ridge 2

N

7

6

°

5

5

'
1

6

"
E

1

4

5

.
1

1

'

C8

B

A

L

D

E

A

G

L

E

K

E

S

T

R

E

L

D

R

I

V

E

C

I

R

C

L

E

Goodness Grace LLC

Parcel No.101156900

S.28.5 Ac. SE/NW,

Less lands sold,

Section 6, T21N, R18E,

Town of Grand Chute

7

0

'

FUTURE

BALDEAGLE

DRIVE

Outlot 4

Apple Ridge

EDGEWOOD  DRIVE (C.T.H. JJ)

TOWN OF  GRAND CHUTE

N

S

W E

CITY OF APPLETON
DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS
ENGINEERING DIVISION
100 NORTH APPLETON STREET
APPLETON, WI 54911
920-832-6474
DRAFTED BY: T. KROMM

BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO

THE WISCONSIN COUNTY

COORDINATE SYSTEM, OUTAGAMIE

COUNTY, SOUTH LINE OF THE

FRACTIONAL SW 1/4 SECTION 6,

T.21N., R.18E.; WHICH BEARS

N89°44'38"E

H:\Acad\Annex\2021\Lightning

Drive_N_of_JJ_0809_2021

Part of the Fractional Southwest ¼ of Section 6, Township 21 North,
Range 18 East, Town of Grand Chute, Outagamie County, Wisconsin.

ANNEXATION EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE DATA TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
965.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
602.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
593.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N38°42'38"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1035.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
408.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
406.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N11°11'03"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
965.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
381.21'

AutoCAD SHX Text
378.74'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S11°11'03"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1035.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1429.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1318.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S17°03'12"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C5

AutoCAD SHX Text
230.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
162.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
159.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S61°16'46"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C6

AutoCAD SHX Text
310.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S52°49'13"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
238.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
241.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
230.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S61°43'30"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
965.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
201.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text
201.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N16°31'22"W



      

 

 

 

TONY EVERS 
 

  

  

GOVERNOR 
 

  

  

JOEL BRENNAN 
 

  

  

SECRETARY 
 

  

  

Municipal Boundary Review 
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701 
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104 
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview 

 

 

     

      

      

 October 20, 2021  PETITION FILE NO. 14443 

         

 KAMI LYNCH, CLERK 

CITY OF APPLETON 

100 N APPLETON ST 

APPLETON, WI 54911-4702 

 ANGIE CAIN, CLERK 

TOWN OF GRAND CHUTE 

1900 GRAND CHUTE BLVD 

GRAND CHUTE, WI 54913-9613 

         

 Subject: LIGHTNING DRIVE & CTH JJ ANNEXATION 

 

The proposed annexation submitted to our office on September 21, 2021, has been reviewed and found to be in the 

public interest. In determining whether an annexation is in the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the 

Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with the 

annexing village or city…." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The statute also 

requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide needed municipal services to 

the territory. The subject petition is for territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguous to the CITY OF 

APPLETON, which is able to provide needed municipal services. 

 

The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. Stats., 

which states: 

 

"The clerk of a city or village which has annexed shall file immediately with the secretary of administration a 

certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each company that provides any 

utility service in the area that is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance with the register of deeds and file a 

signed copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school district..." 

 

State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through failure to file 

with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, including a statement 

certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR number 14443 with your ordinance. 

Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on "Help on How to Submit Municipal Records". 

Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin 

Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary Review, PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701-1645. 

 

The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2517 

Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review. 

         

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review  cc: petitioner 
 

 

 

http://mds.wi.gov/
mailto:mds@wi.gov
http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2517


 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner/Applicant:  City of Appleton 

 

Address/Parcel:  Part of Tax Id #101006900 in the Town of Grand Chute.  The subject property is 

located west of North Meade Street, connecting existing East Spartan Drive right-of-way to the west and 

east. 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  Owner is requesting direct annexation by unanimous approval pursuant to Section 

66.0217(2), Wisconsin State Statutes of land currently located in the Town of Grand Chute, Outagamie 

County. 

 

Purpose for Annexation:  Future construction of a street officially mapped as Spartan Drive and an 

associated stormwater pond is anticipated. 

 

Population of Such Territory:  0 

 

Annexation Area:  3.9468 acres m/l 

 

BACKGROUND  ___________________________________________________  _ 

On March 16, 1992, the City of Appleton and the Town of Grand Chute agreed to and entered into an 

Intermunicipal Boundary Agreement pursuant to Section 66.027 and 66.30 of the Wisconsin State 

Statutes for the purpose of defining and expanding the provision of governmental services, including 

water and sewer services, by establishing the City’s growth area and establishing provisions for 

annexation of land within the Town of Grand Chute to the City of Appleton. 

 

On March 5, 2008, Common Council adopted Ordinance 51-08, which amended the City’s Official Map 

to officially map the location of an east-west roadway to be known as Spartan Drive.  

 

On February 3, 2021 Common Council approved a Relocation Order for the subject area, with the 

purpose to construct officially mapped Spartan Drive and an associated stormwater pond.  The property 

needed for the project was acquired in subsequent months and is included in this annexation request. 

Before Common Council approves the annexation ordinance, the City must allow a 20-day statutory 

review period, which starts when the Wisconsin Department of Administration (DOA) receives the 

annexation application materials and fee.  The DOA received the annexation application materials and fee 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  October 27, 2021 

 

Common Council Meeting Date:  November 3, 2021 

 

Item:  Spartan Drive Annexation 

 

Case Manager:  Jessica Titel, Principal Planner 

Community 

and Economic  

Development 



Spartan Drive Annexation 

October 27, 2021 

Page 2 

 

on October 8, 2021, so this requirement will be satisfied prior to Common Council taking action at their 

November 3, 2021 meeting. 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

The Community and Economic Development Department staff has reviewed the annexation petition and 

identifies the following: 

 

• The area proposed for annexation is contiguous to the existing City boundary.  The subject 

property connects to the City of Appleton at the east and west portions of Spartan Drive right-of-

way. 

 

• Annexation of the site in question is consistent with the Intermunicipal Boundary Agreement with 

the Town of Grand Chute. 

 

• City water, sanitary and storm sewer infrastructure is already installed along the western portion of 

Spartan Drive that will connect to the subject area.  It is anticipated that public utility 

infrastructure will be included with the future construction of Spartan Drive. 

 

• Currently, the subject property consists of vacant, undeveloped land. 

 

• The owner is requesting that the City Plan Commission initiate a rezoning for the subject property, 

from temporary AG Agricultural District to a permanent zoning classification of P-I Public 

Institutional District.  The temporary zoning classification must be made permanent in accordance 

with Section 23-65(d), Zoning Map Amendments, within 90 days, or the zoning will revert to AG 

Agricultural District. 

 

Surrounding Zoning Classification and Land Uses: 

 

North:  Town of Grand Chute.  The adjacent land use to the north is currently agriculture. 

 

South:  R-3 Multi-Family District & Town of Grand Chute.  The adjacent land uses to the south are 

currently a mix of multi-family residential uses, including a community-based residential facility, and 

agriculture. 

 

East:  P-I Public Institutional District.  The adjacent land use to the east is currently undeveloped and 

planned for a future City-owned stormwater management facility. 

 

West:  R-1B Single-Family District.  The adjacent land use to the west is currently single-family 

residential (Clearwater Creek Subdivision). 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  The City of Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 

identifies this area for future One and Two-Family Residential uses.  The proposed annexation is 

consistent with the following goals and objectives of the Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

 



Spartan Drive Annexation 

October 27, 2021 

Page 3 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 4 – Transportation 

Appleton will support a comprehensive transportation network that provides viable options for 

pedestrian, bicycle, highway, rail, and air transportation, both locally and within the region. 

 

OBJECTIVE 6.1 Transportation: 

Plan for the safe and efficient movement of vehicles on local and regional roads. 

 

OBJECTIVE 6.8 Transportation: 

Implement transportation improvements which also support the City’s desired land use, housing and 

neighborhood goals, objectives, and policies. 

 

OBJECTIVE 7.5 Utilities and Community Facilities: 

Implement effective stormwater management practices. 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item was discussed at the October 5, 2021 Technical 

Review Group meeting.  No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

FUTURE ACTIONS___________________________________________________________________ 

Per Section 23-65(e) of the Municipal Code, a temporary zoning classification is assigned to newly 

annexed territory, with permanent zoning taking place following the annexation process.  All territory 

annexed to the City is assigned a zoning classification as recommended by Plan Commission.  The Plan 

Commission shall consider the following criteria in selection of an appropriate zoning district for the 

annexed land:  

 

- The existing land uses within the territory to be annexed; 

- The surrounding land uses that exist on adjacent properties regardless of municipal boundary 

lines; 

- The comprehensive plan of the City. 

 

The owner is requesting that Plan Commission initiate a rezoning for the subject property, from 

temporary AG Agricultural District to a permanent zoning classification of P-I Public Institutional 

District.  A rezoning initiated directly by Plan Commission will be processed in accordance with Section 

23-65(d), Zoning Map Amendments, which includes review and action by the Common Council. 

 

It is anticipated that a Certified Survey Map (CSM) will be prepared to reconfigure lot lines and dedicate 

public right-of-way.  The dedication of land for public right-of-way for Spartan Drive requires action by 

Plan Commission and Common Council.  CSMs are administratively reviewed and approved by City 

staff. 

 

 



Spartan Drive Annexation 

October 27, 2021 

Page 4 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends that the Spartan Drive Annexation, as shown on the attached maps, BE APPROVED 

with the following stipulation: 

 

1. The Plan Commission initiate the rezoning for the subject property, from temporary AG 

Agricultural District to a permanent zoning classification of P-I Public Institutional District, 

pursuant to Section 23-65(d)(1) of the Municipal Code. 



219 239 305

54
20

56
33 56
44

56
55

566
7

570
1 571
0

572
1

5657 5648

54
10

54
20

54
30

54
14

54
04

55
48

55
36

55
35

55
22

55
05

55
00

55
20

56
22

56
38

56
33

56
22

56
21

56
04

56
03

55
45

55
44

55
28

55
27

55
02

54
24

54
11

240232222212202-04 306

54
25

54
15

54
05

55
01

55
55

5515

5750

573
3

573
0

551
0

5500 54
31

55
27

54
21

5431

5465

54
44

55
0255

01
55

33

55
24

55
40

200 218 236 300 310 320

55
45

56
00

55
40

55
25

57
15

A

665AB553 B A B A623575 687 701 715B A B A B A511
B

A
51

0 550A B526B
A

B

57
17

55
00

55
77

56
01

56
23

56
55

56
79

57
11

57
43

57
10

57
42

57
65 57

64
58

08

131

130 166

324

286

312

260

244

222

210

159
201

215

237

249

275

303

319

160

58
05

6-6200-17

6-6200-18

6-6
20

0-5
2

6-6
20

0-5
3

6-6
20

0-5
4

6-6
20

0-5
5

6-6
20

0-5
6

6-6
20

0-5
7

6-6200-58

6-6200-59

6-6200-60 6-6200-61

6-6200-62

6-6200-63

6-6200

6-6101

6-6100-11

6-6
10

0-1

6-6
10

0-2

6-6
10

0-3

6-6
10

0-4

6-6
10

0-5

6-6
10

0-6

6-6
10

0-7

6-6
10

0-8

6-6
10

0-9

6-6
10

0-1
06-6

20
1-2

5

6-6200-87

6-6200-96

6-6200-95

6-6200-97

6-6200-98

6-6200-99

6-6202-1

6-6202

6-6202-2

6-6202-3

6-6202-4

6-6202-5

6-6202-6

6-6200-94

6-6200-93

6-6200-89

6-6200-90

6-6200-91 6-6200-92

6-6202-7

6-6202-9

6-6202-8

6-6202-17

6-6202-18

6-6202-19

6-6202-15

6-6202-14

6-6202-10

6-6202-11

6-6202-12

6-6202-13

6-6202-16

6-6200-64

6-6200-67

6-6200-66

6-6200-65

6-6200-70

6-6200-69

6-6200-68

6-6200-71

6-6200-73

6-6200-74

6-6200-75

6-6200-72

6-6200-76

6-6200-77

6-6200-78

6-6200-79

6-6200-80

6-6200-826-6200-836-6200-86

6-6201

6-6201-26

6-6200-88

6-6200-846-6200-85
6-6200-81

6-6202-21

6-6202-22

6-6202-23

6-6202-24

6-6202-25

6-6202-26

6-6000

6-6001-2

6-6100-50

0-6100-2

0-6100-30-6100-40-6100-5

0-6
10

0-
6

0-6100-70-6100-80-6100-9
0-6100-10

0-6100-11

0-6100-12

0-6100-13

1-8501

6-6100-60

6-6100-61

6-6202-29

1-9314-8

6-6202-30

6-6202-31

6-6202-32

6-6202-33

6-6202-34

6-6202-35

6-6202-36

6-6202-37

6-6202-38

6-6202-39
6-6202-40

6-6202-43

6-6202-44

6-6202-45

6-6202-50

6-6202-47

6-6202-48

6-6202-49

6-6202-51

6-6202-52
6-6202-53

6-6202-54

6-6
20

2-5
6

6-6200

6-6202-46

6-6202-42

6-6202-41

6-6202-55

6-6202-18

6-6202-37

0099-2

6-6202-35

6-6202-22

6-6200-77

0973

0-6100-12

6-6202-43

6-6100-60

6-6200-71

6-6202-46

6-6202-4

6-6200-61

6-6202-36

0068-1

6-6200-97

0-6100-3

6-6
10

0-9

6-6202-8

0099-1

6-6200

6-6200-88

6-6202-26

0-6
10

0-
6

6-6200-69

6-6200-17

6-6202-15

00
70

6-6
20

2-5
6

6-6200-94

0-6100-8

0068

6-6
20

0-5
7

6-6202-49

6-6100-50

6-6201-26

6-6200-60

6-6202-9

6-6200-63

6-6200

006803

6-6200-68

0074-1

6-6200-18

002101

6-6001-2

6-6200-76

6-6202-7

6-6200-81

6-6200-90

6-6202-39

6-6200-80

6-6202-38

6-6202-10

6-6200-666-6202-3

6-6200-70

0076

6-6202-47

006806

6-6202-17

6-6
20

0-5
5

6-6202-48

6-6200-78

6-6200-83

6-6202-5

0-6100-9

006802

6-6202-25

6-6200-67

6-6202

6-6200-58

6-6202-29

6-6200-62

6-6
10

0-1
0

0-6100-5

6-6202-40

0099-3

6-6100-116-6
20

1-2
5

6-6200-59

6-6200-82

6-6
10

0-8

6-6200-85

6-6202-44

6-6200-84

6-6200-93

6-6202-6

6-6202-14

6-6200-87

0-6100-7

6-6
20

0-5
4

6-6202-34

0070-1

6-6202-33

6-6
10

0-6

6-6200-74

008901

6-6
10

0-3

6-6202-12

0-6100-13

6-6202-53

6-6
10

0-4

6-6200-896-6202-23

6-6200-91

6-6200-86

6-6202-55

6-6202-42

6-6
20

0-5
2

6-6202-1

006805

1-8501

6-6202-31

6-6200-99

6-6
10

0-7

6-6200-79

6-6
20

0-5
3

6-6200-65

6-6200-96

6-6200-92

6-6200-98

6-6202-52

6-6200-64

6-6200-95

6-6
10

0-5

0-6100-10

0099-4

6-6202-41

6-6200-73

6-6
20

0-5
6

0-6100-4

006804

6-6202-32

0-6100-2

0976

6-6202-51

6-6200-72

6-6101

6-6202-2

0-6100-11

0074-2

6-6202-54

0021

6-6
10

0-1

6-6202-24

6-6202-50

6-6201

6-6200-75

6-6202-11

6-6000

6-6202-16

6-6202-30

006807

0069

6-6202-21

6-6202-19

6-6
10

0-2

6-6202-45

1-9314-8

6-6202-13

P-I

AG

R-3

R-1A

R-1B

P-I

AG

AG

AG

AG

P-I

N 
ME

AD
E S

T

E BROADWAY DR

E SPARTAN DR

ME
AD

E S
T

HY
 47

N 
BA

LL
AR

D 
RD

N 
ME

AD
E S

T

MACKVILLE RDCTY TK O

E EDGEWOOD DR

N 
RI

CH
MO

ND
 ST

CTY TK EME
AD

E S
T

W EDGEWOOD DR

E BROADWAY DR

N 
GI

LL
ET

T S
T

N LIGHTNING DRHA
YM

EA
DO

W
 AV

E WERNER RD

Annexation
Spartan Drive (Right-of-Way)

Town of Grand Chute
Zoning Map

Subject Area

Subject Area

±0 200 400100 FeetCity Plan Commission
10-27-2021



E ABERDEEN ST

E SPARTAN DR

N SUMMERLAND CT

Annexation
Spartan Drive (Right-of-Way)

Town of Grand Chute
Aerial Map

0 400200
Feet ±

Subject Area

City Plan Commission
10-27-2021

CITY LIMITS

CITY LIMITS







C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
P

L
E

T
O

N

T
.
 
O

F
 
G

R
A

N
D

 
C

H
U

T
E

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
A

P
P

L
E

T
O

N

T
.
 
O

F
 
G

R
A

N
D

 
C

H
U

T
E

7

0

'

7

0

'

C-3

N

2

8

°

4

2

'

5

5

"

E

 

 

1

7

0

.

7

5

'

C
-4

E 

1

4

 CORNER

SECTION 2-21-17

MAG NAIL W/WASHER

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

S

4

4

°

2

4

'

2

8

"

E

 

1

1

9

.

0

8

'

N

4

5

°

3

5

'

3

2

"

E

4

7

.

7

8

'

S

4

4

°

2

4

'

2

8

"

E

 

 

 

1

7

5

.

8

1

'

City of Appleton

Parcel No.31-6-6100-60

Outlot 1,  CSM 7737

John Baum,

Suhonen Contractor LLC

Parcel No.101006803

Part of Lot 1, CSM 4437

Town of Grand Chute

Baum Rev. Trust, Kenneth G.

Baum Rev. Trust, Jeanne E.

Parcel No.101006900

Part of Lot 1, CSM 4027

Town of Grand Chute

Baum Rev. Trust, Kenneth G.

Baum Rev. Trust, Jeanne E.

Parcel No.101006900

Part of Lot 1, CSM 4027

Town of Grand Chute

Clearwater Creek

Development LLC

P. No.31-6-6202-46

Lot 143, 3rd Addn. to

Clearwater Creek

N
0
0
°
1
9
'
4
5
"
E

9
0
.
9
7
'

NE CORNER

SECTION 2-21-17

RR. SPIKE

E
A

S
T

 
L
I
N

E
 
F

R
A

C
.
 
N

E
 

1

4

 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
-
2
1
-
1
7
 
 
S

0
0
°
0
0
'
0
5
"
W

 
 
1
9
7
9
.
0
1
'

SOUTH LINE OF THE FRACTIONAL NE 

1

4

 SECTION 2-21-17  N89°40'21"W  2601.79'

N89°40'21"W  839.03'

1

1

9

.

6

0

'

N

5

0

°

3

8

'

1

6

"

E

S

5

0

°

3

8

'

1

6

"

W

 

 

1

7

7

.

6

9

'

T

O

W

N

 

O

F

 

G

.

 

C

H

U

T

E

T

O

W

N

 

O

F

 

G

.

 

C

H

U

T

E

T. OF GRAND CHUTE

Clearwater Creek

Development LLC

P. No.31-6-6202-56

Outlot 1, C.S.M. No.8106

3

0

'

4

0

'

W
E

S
T

 
L
I
N

E
 
O

F
 
C

.
S

.
M

.
 
N

O
.
7
7
3
7

F

U

T

U

R

E

 

S

P

A

R

T

A

N

 

D

R

I

V

E

S

P

A

R

T

A

N

 

D

R

I

V

E

S

P

A

R

T

A

N

D

R

.

T

O

W

N

 

O

F

 

G

.

 

C

H

U

T

E

Seth and Katherine Lenz

Parcel No.101006800

Part of Lot 1, CSM 4431

Town of Grand Chute

C

I

T

Y

 

O

F

 

A

P

P

L

E

T

O

N

CITY OF APPLETON

ANNEXATION

AREA

S
0
1
°
0
3
'
0
1
"
W

 
 
 
2
1
9
.
7
0
'

FUTURE

OUTLOT  1

73,038 SQ. FT.

1.6767 ACRES

N

3

9

°

2

1

'

4

4

"

W

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

3

1

.

8

8

'

N

4

5

°

3

5

'

3

2

"

E

7

0

.

0

0

'

N

4

4

°

2

4

'

2

8

"

W

 

 

 

 

1

7

9

.

7

8

'

N

4

4

°

2

4

'

2

8

"

W

 

 

 

 

1

9

5

.

5

9

'

S

4

5

°

3

5

'

3

2

"

W

 

 

6

5

.

4

6

'

N89°40'21"W       234.71'

C

-

1

C

-

2

D

E

D

IC

A
T

ED        TO
        T

H

E

        P

U

B

L

I
C

9

8

,
8
8
8
   S

Q
.  FT.   (2

.2
7
0
1
     A

C

R

E

S

)

171,926 SQ. FT.

3.9468 ACRES

0' 120' 240'

N

S

W E

CITY OF APPLETON
DEPT. OF PUBLIC WORKS
ENGINEERING DIVISION
100 NORTH APPLETON STREET
APPLETON, WI 54911
920-832-6474
DRAFTED BY: T. KROMM

BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE

WISCONSIN COUNTY COORDINATE SYSTEM,

OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, SOUTH LINE OF THE

FRACTIONAL NE 1/4 SECTION 2, T.21N., R.17E.;

WHICH BEARS N89°40'21"W

Cloud:\Acad\Annex\2021\Spartan_Baum_0915_2021

Part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 4027 filed in Volume 22 of Certified Survey Maps on Page 4027 as Document No.1402877, being located
in the South ½ of the Fractional Northeast ¼ of Section 2, Township 21 North, Range 17 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin.

ANNEXATION  EXHIBIT

SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE DATA TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LC

AutoCAD SHX Text
LCB

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
440.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N49°24'52"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
365.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
97.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N52°03'42"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
365.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
443.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
416.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S85°27'40"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C4

AutoCAD SHX Text
435.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
644.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S86°53'06"E



      

 

 

 

TONY EVERS 
 

  

  

GOVERNOR 
 

  

  

JOEL BRENNAN 
 

  

  

SECRETARY 
 

  

  

Municipal Boundary Review 
PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701 
Voice (608) 264-6102     Fax (608) 264-6104 
Email: wimunicipalboundaryreview@wi.gov 
Web: http://doa.wi.gov/municipalboundaryreview 

 

 

     

      

      

 October 28, 2021  PETITION FILE NO. 14451 

         

 KAMI LYNCH, CLERK 

CITY OF APPLETON 

100 N APPLETON ST 

APPLETON, WI 54911-4702 

 ANGIE CAIN, CLERK 

TOWN OF GRAND CHUTE 

1900 GRAND CHUTE BLVD 

GRAND CHUTE, WI 54913-9613 

         

 Subject: SPARTAN DRIVE ANNEXATION  

 

The proposed annexation submitted to our office on October 08, 2021, has been reviewed and found to be in the 

public interest. In determining whether an annexation is in the public interest, s. 66.0217 (6), Wis. Stats. requires the 

Department to examine "[t]he shape of the proposed annexation and the homogeneity of the territory with the 

annexing village or city…." so as, to ensure the resulting boundaries are rational and compact. The statute also 

requires the Department to consider whether the annexing city or village can provide needed municipal services to 

the territory. The subject petition is for territory that is reasonably shaped and contiguous to the CITY OF 

APPLETON, which is able to provide needed municipal services. 

 

Note: 1) It appears that City of Appleton should be changed to Town of Grand Chute in the general location 

description under the annexation scale map heading, because currently the territory lies within the Town.  

2) It appears that this annexation will create a town island contrary to s. 66.0221, Wis. Stats.  However, the City and 

Town have developed a boundary agreement between themselves, which is an exception to the statutory prohibition. 

 

The Department reminds clerks of annexing municipalities of the requirements of s. 66.0217 (9)(a), Wis. Stats., 

which states that the clerk of a city or village which has annexed shall file immediately with the secretary of 

administration a certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send one copy to each company that 

provides any utility service in the area that is annexed. The clerk shall record the ordinance with the register of deeds 

and file a signed copy of the ordinance with the clerk of any affected school district. 

 

State and federal aids based on population and equalized value may be significantly affected through failure to file 

with the Department of Administration. Please file a copy of your annexing ordinance, including a statement 

certifying the population of the annexed territory. Please include your MBR number 14451 with your ordinance. 

Ordinance filing checklist available at http://mds.wi.gov/, click on "Help on How to Submit Municipal Records". 

Email scanned copy of required materials (color scan maps with color) to mds@wi.gov or mail to: Wisconsin 

Department of Administration, Municipal Boundary Review, PO Box 1645, Madison WI 53701-1645. 

 

The petition file is available for viewing at: http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2525 

Please call me at (608) 264-6102, should you have any questions concerning this annexation review. 

         

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 Erich Schmidtke, Municipal Boundary Review  cc: petitioner 
 

 

 

http://mds.wi.gov/
mailto:mds@wi.gov
http://mds.wi.gov/View/Petition?ID=2525


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

 

TO:  Parks & Recreation Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza, Director of Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

 

DATE:  October 25, 2021 

 

RE:  Action Item:  Award Mead Pool Condition Analysis Project to GRAEF for a contract 

amount of $44,975.00. 

 

The 2021 Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department Capital Projects Fund 

includes $50,000 for the Mead Pool Condition Analysis.  

 

The Mead Aquatic Facility opened in 1962 at its current location and in 1992 an aquatics renovation 

was completed. The admissions and bath house building is original from 1962 with no major updates 

to date besides routine maintenance and roof replacements. The existing pool, concessions building, 

and mechanical building were built in 1992. 

    

Two requests for proposals (RFP) were submitted for the Mead Pool Condition Analysis. Firms were 

evaluated on project team and experience, total hours, project understanding, and project schedule. 

Below is the pricing received from the RFP. 

 

 Company      Proposal Costs  

 GRAEF   $44,975.00   

 MSA    $43,875.00  

 

GRAEF has allotted more time to the project,  placing a higher emphasis on electrical, plumbing, 

structural, and aquatic mechanical. GRAEF also offers a platform for applying ratings to equipment 

and systems based on severity, probability of occurrence, criticality, lifespan, energy efficiency, and 

redundancy.    

 

GRAEF was determined to be the responsible proposal for the Mead Pool Condition Analysis 

Project.  It is the recommendation of the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department to 

execute a contract with GRAEF in the amount of $44,975.00. 

  

Please feel free to contact me at 832-5572 or by email at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any 

questions or comments.  

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 



 

  

 

 
 

 

 
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

Jacob A. Woodford 
100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, Wisconsin 54911 

Phone: (920) 832-6400 
Email: Mayor@Appleton.org 

 
TO:  Finance Committee & Common Council 

FROM:  Mayor Jacob A. Woodford & Finance Director Tony Saucerman 

DATE:  October 8, 2021 

RE:  ARPA 

  
 

The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), a $1.9 trillion economic stimulus package passed in March 2021, 
included substantial aid to local governments including the City of Appleton. Considered a “metropolitan 
city” by the U.S. Department of the Treasury, Appleton stands to directly receive approximately $14.9 
million through the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund. Initially, there was limited 
information about how much each community would receive, and little guidance on applicable uses. The 
Treasury Department issued an Interim Final Rule in May 2021, which outlined allowable uses and 
program priorities for the ARPA funds as follows: 

Public Health:  Support public health initiatives by funding COVID-19 mitigation efforts, medical 
expenses, behavioral health care, and certain public health and safety staff costs. 

Economy:  Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency including 
economic harm to workers, households, small businesses, impacted industries, and the public 
sector. 

Hardest Hit:  Serve the hardest-hit population and families by addressing health disparities and 
social determinants of health, investing in housing and neighborhoods, addressing educational 
disparities, and promoting healthy childhood environments. 

Public Sector:  Replace lost public sector revenue due to the pandemic and use this funding to 
provide government services. 

Essential Workers:  Provide premium pay for essential workers to support those who have borne 
and will bear the greatest health risk because of their service in critical infrastructure sectors. 

Infrastructure:  Invest in water, sewer, stormwater, and broadband infrastructure making 
necessary expenditures to ensure access to clean drinking water, support vital wastewater and 
stormwater infrastructure, and expand access to broadband. 

Unlike many grant programs, ARPA relies on the grantees to organize their own use of funds within the 
framework laid out in the Interim Rule rather than rigidly defining projects through an application review 
process. This means that there are nearly as many approaches to determining allocations and managing 



2 

 

use of the funds as there are communities receiving them. Even in our immediate region, there are 
numerous and varied approaches and philosophies guiding use of ARPA dollars.  

Here in Appleton, we set out with some guiding principles as our process got underway in May:  

• ARPA funds are taxpayer dollars and must be stewarded transparently and with care 

• Community input will serve as a guiding force in our use of the funds 

• Established budget policies and practices will be used to govern the allocation of funds – this 

means the Common Council will approve final allocations 

• ARPA represents an opportunity to both support City operations and community needs – we will 

seek to strike a balance between these in the recommendations we develop 

• ARPA funds will not be used to hire new City employees 

• Compliance with the Interim and Final Rules must be maintained 

• Collaboration and coordination with neighboring municipalities and other levels of government is 

essential to avoid duplication of effort and to maximize use of funds to serve residents 

Between May 2021 and the end of August 2021, we undertook a process of understanding community 
and organizational needs. We did so by establishing an internal ARPA allocation working group and 
discussing needs with every Department Director; gathering input from community stakeholders; holding 
discussions with local school districts, governments (municipal and county), and partner organizations; 
soliciting feedback internally; reviewing current funding opportunities to identify areas of need; and 
calculating lost revenue per regulatory guidance.  

Through this process, two broad categories of uses have emerged:  

Determined Initiatives (Category 1)  – these are initiatives and uses that are largely defined, 
within the City’s control, where rapid deployment is manageable and/or necessary. This category 
is being brought to the Finance Committee for recommendation as a 2021 budget amendment to 
facilitate immediate use of funds. 

Priorities Needing Definition (Category 2) – these are priorities that surfaced through the input 
gathering, but that need further definition, process development, and proposals for specific 
projects and uses. This category is outlined in the 2022 Executive Budget and Service Plan and is 
expected to take shape through additional community input, staff program development and 
strategies, and Common Council reviews and approvals in the coming months.  
 

For purposes of the October 11 Finance Committee meeting, this memo will focus on the Category 1-
Determined Initiatives, to be brought forward as a 2021 budget amendment. To that end, staff 
recommends the following allocations and spending authorization for a portion of the total ARPA 
allocation:  
 
COVID-19 
Response 

With nearly all of the previous funding for COVID response 
allocated and/or spent, this portion will ensure the City can 
continue to effectively respond to the pandemic in areas 
similar to CARES Act activities and costs, such as personal 
protective equipment; contact investigation; disease 
mitigation; testing and vaccination operations; and personnel 
expenses for public health, safety, and other staff responding 
to the pandemic. Excess balance of this line at the end of the 
ARPA spending period would be allocated to lost revenue. 
 

$1,991,841 



3 

 

 
Lost Revenue Municipalities are allowed to use ARPA funds to supplement 

lost revenue in accordance with a formula provided by the 
Treasury Department. Appleton would be eligible for just over 
$10M in lost revenue based on the formula, however, this 
recommendation covers only the lost revenue most affecting 
City operations: Parking Utility Revenue. This estimates a 
portion of the lost revenue over the eligible ARPA spending 
period.  
 

$1,500,000 

Lead Service Line 
Abatement & 
Sewer/Water 
Infrastructure 

Appleton has been making progress on removing and 
replacing known public lead water service lines in the City 
through a multi-decade effort. Staff believes this allocation 
would enable abatement of all known remaining public lead 
service lines in the City of Appleton. If there are any remaining 
funds after lead service lines are addressed, those funds would 
be directed to eligible sewer/water infrastructure projects.  
 

$1,000,000 

Broadband Access 
& Information 
Infrastructure 

Broadband access and information infrastructure is a priority 
of ARPA. Appleton proposes to use this portion of funds to 
leverage and enhance an existing project, the Library 
renovation and expansion, to provide better internet and 
information access to our residents through that facility as a 
hub.  
 

$2,000,000 

Short-Term Direct 
Community 
Partner Support 

While much of the support for community partners and 
initiatives will be handled within Category 2 priorities, there 
are immediate needs from community partners on a variety of 
fronts. This support will focus on not-for-profit organizations 
that bolster the local economy, community wellness, and 
pandemic recovery. Development of a simple grant application 
and compliance criteria will be necessary for this allocation.  
 

$250,000 

Consulting & 
Administration 
Support 

Category 2 initiatives will require significant process 
development, community input facilitation, coordination with 
other ARPA funding recipients, performance documentation, 
Common Council reporting, and ongoing compliance activity 
to accomplish. These funds will support administration of 
those activities.  
 
 

$150,000 

 Total $6,891,841 
  
The City of Appleton will follow established budget policies and procedures, including detailed reporting, 
in using these funds. Furthermore, the City, as an ARPA recipient, is required to submit regular reports to 
the Treasury Department on funding use and will be required to do so for many years to come. 

The total of this recommendation amounts to just under half of the City’s total ARPA allocation of 
$14,891,841. The second category is outlined on pages 69-73 in the 2022 Executive Budget and Service 
Plan. Initiatives described in that portion of the plan covering $8 million of the City’s allocation cover the 



4 

 

range of community suggestions and known needs, however, they do not detail projects as further 
process will be required to bring forward specific recommendations. Additionally, following further 
definition of the priorities, potential collaborations in that set of initiatives will take time to develop. 

Ultimately, all ARPA-related spending will be merged and tracked in the Budget and Service Plan in the 
years to come. The initial approach of 2021 Budget amendment/2022 Executive Budget 
recommendations reflects the need to immediately use a portion of the funds, while allowing additional 
time for the planning and process development required for the other portion of the funds. 



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Unit O-21 Stormwater Pond Sediment Removal and Disposal

Be awarded to:  

Name:  Veit & Company, Inc.

Address:  2445 S. 179th Street, Suite E

New Berlin, WI 53146

In the amount of :

With a 5.8 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

$95,000.00

$60,000.00

10/25/21

11/03/21

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$87,000.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$5,000.00

$92,000.00

10/20/2021

C:\Users\buetowrm\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\9FOQUSIS\O-21 Pond Sediment Removal and Disposal Contract Award Form.xlsx



Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

1
AHF Pond 4 Sediment Removal, 
Disposal, and Restoration

Lump 
Sum

1 $38,000.00 $38,000.00 $64,636.23 $64,636.23 $77,000.00 $77,000.00 $97,250.00 $97,250.00

2
AHF High Pond Sediment 
Removal, Disposal, and 
Restoration

Lump 
Sum

1 $49,000.00 $49,000.00 $71,328.96 $71,328.96 $77,000.00 $77,000.00 $122,350.00 $122,350.00

Base Bid Total: $87,000.00 $135,965.19 $154,000.00 $219,600.00

Advance Construction Inc. Highway Landscapers, Inc.Bid 
Item

Item Description Unit Qty

Bid Tabulation
Unit O-21 Stormwater Pond Sediment Removal and Disposal

10/18/2021

Veit & Company, Inc. Radtke Contractors Inc.



 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572 FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  10/25/2021 

 

RE: Action:  Approve transfer of funding from the David & Rita Nelson River Crossing 

Capital Improvement Plan to fund Phase I of the Ellen Kort Peace Park 

development for a total of $750,645. 

 

 

The 2021 Capital Improvement Plan includes $650,000 to fund the design and start of construction 

for the David & Rita Nelson River Crossing.  In addition, the 2021 carryover requests approved 

$267,102 for permitting and design of the crossing. The unallocated portion of these funds leaves 

a balance of $750,645. 

 

Design of the David & Rita Nelson River Crossing was stopped due to Neenah Papers notifying 

the City that they are selling their properties.   As a result this defers the project until such time the 

property is sold and the new owner agrees to amend their Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

Permit to include the new bridge crossing within their authorized basin of the Fox River.  

 

This request to transfer funds seeks to not stall, but to continue to make progress toward 

implementation of the Trail and Comprehensive Park Master Plans.  With Jones Park being 

completed, terms reached with WE Energies to utilize their property for construction of the Ellen 

Kort Peace Park, DNR approval of the plans, and phase one design completed, we are positioned 

to move forward with the development of the Ellen Kort Peace Park. Phase one includes civil work 

to establish site elevations and grading of the park and contruction of the riverfront trail. This 

project will connect Jones Park to the future David & Rita Nelson River Crossing bridge and the 

future trail boardwalk that will eventually stretch from Vulcan Heritage Park to Lutz 

Park/Appleton Yacht Club. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 
 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572 FAX (920) 993-3103 
Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

 

TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  10/25/2021 

 

RE: Action: Approve balance transfer of $40,000 from the roof replacement capital 

improvement plan to the Municipal Services Building office space reallocation 

project. 

 

The 2022 budget seeks to reallocate funding within the Department of Public Works budget to hire 

a new position that will work at the Municipal Services Building.  To provide a productive work 

space for this employee and others currently working in ineffective spaces, this memo requests 

reallocating funding to pay for these updates. 

 

The roof replacement capital improvement plan has a positive variance that will be able to fund 

this need without seeking an additional funding source now or in the future.  The majority of the 

funding will pay for workstations and modifications to the HVAC system to allow a large room to 

be divided into two spaces where both will be used for offices.   

 

In conclusion, Facilities Management has been working hard to upgrade work environments to 

ensure employees have the proper space, ergonomics, lighting, etc. to fulfill their responsibilities.  

Many spaces are original and Facilities Management has been able to adjust these spaces with 

mainly in-house staffing for significantly less money.  This minor update accomplishes the same 

goals. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 

 

 

 

TO: Community and Economic Development Committee (CEDC) 

  

FROM: Karen Harkness, Director of Community & Economic Development  

  

DATE: October 27, 2021 

RE: Request Approval of the Development Agreement between the City of Appleton and MF 

Housing Partners, LLC in TIF #11 

 

MF Housing Partners, LLC (Developer) is requesting assistance to support a proposed 43-unit WHEDA Sec. 

42 apartment project (RISE).   

 

The proposed project would be on the following parcels, all zoned CBD Central Business District: 31-2-0441-

00, 31-2-0443-00, 31-2-0437-00, 31-2-0536-00, 31-2-0534-00, and 31-2-0529-00.   

 

Thirty-six (36) of the forty-three (43) units will be available to low-income persons with the rents restricted for 

an estimated thirty (30) years.    

 

The proposed project will include separate buildings and parking areas divided by E. Harris Street.  The 

northern parcel will have 5 three-bedroom townhouses and 3 two-bedroom townhouses with attached garages. 

The southern parcel will include 4 three-bedroom townhouses, 5 one-bedroom apartments, 25 two-bedroom 

apartments, and 1 three-bedroom apartment.  This building will also include a community service facility and 

lobby.  

 

The proposed project would include 38 surface parking spaces, 30 covered parking spaces, and 13 attached 

garages.    

 

No building plans were submitted, and the square footage of each apartment living space is unknown.   

 

The cost to develop the project is stated at $10.5 million.  The Developer and Assessor estimate the assessed 

value of the project once completed to be approximately $3.4 million. 

 

Developer requests a Pay-As-You-Go TIF support at 20% ($611,920).   

 

Based on the analysis of current value of the property, projected value of the property, and review of proposed 

expenses, TIF District #11 would invest the lesser of twenty percent (20%) or $611,920 of the Tax Increment 

Value as of January 1, 2024, plus interest thereon to support the construction work for MF Housing Partners, 

LLC. 

 

Staff Recommendation:  

 

The Development Agreement between the City of Appleton and MF Housing Partners, LLC BE APPROVED. 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 1 

TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is dated as of the ___ day of 
____________, 2021, by and among MF Housing Partners LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability 
company (“Developer”) and the City of Appleton, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “City”). 

RECITALS 

Developer and the City acknowledge the following: 

A. Developer owns or will acquire the real property located at North Oneida Street, 
East Harris Street, and North Appleton Street, (Parcel Nos. 31-2-0441-00, 31-2-0443-00, 31-2-
0437-00, 31-2-0536-00, 31-2-0534-00, and 31-2-0529-00, Appleton, WI more particularly 
described in Exhibit A, attached hereto (collectively the “Property”). 

B. The Property is located within the City in Tax Increment District #11 (the “District”) 
which was created in 2017 pursuant to Section 66.1105, Wis. Stats. along with a plan for the 
redevelopment of the District (the “District Plan”) that provides for, among other things, the 
financial assistance set forth in this Agreement. 

C. Subject to obtaining the financial assistance set forth herein, Developer has 
proposed improvements to the Property to create an approximately 43 rental apartments (the 
“Project”).  All references to the Project include the Property. 

D. The City has determined that the Project will spur economic development, expand 
the City’s tax base and create new jobs; that such financial assistance is a Project Cost under the 
Tax Incremental Law; that the amount of financial assistance provided pursuant to this Agreement 
is the amount necessary to induce development of the Project; and, that the Project will not 
proceed without the financial assistance set forth in this Agreement. 

E. Subject to obtaining financial assistance as set forth herein, Developer intends to 
undertake a redevelopment of the property that will increase the value of the Property and provide 
other tangible benefits to the surrounding neighborhoods and to the City as a whole, consistent 
with the District Plan.  The City finds that this redevelopment of the Property and the fulfillment, 
generally, of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are in the vital and best interests of the 
City and its residents and serves a public purpose in accordance with state and local law. 

F. The City, pursuant to Common Council Action dated on or about November 3, 
2021 approved this Agreement and authorized the execution of this Agreement by the proper City 
officers on the City’s behalf. 

G. The Developer has approved this Agreement and authorized the appropriate 
officers to execute this Agreement on the Developer’s behalf. 

H. The base value of the Property for purposes of this Agreement, including 
calculating increment generated by the Project, is $340,400. The Developer estimates the project 
will create up to an additional $3,059,600 in incremental value. 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 2 

I. All terms that are capitalized but not defined in this Agreement and that are defined 
under the Tax Increment Law shall have the definitions assigned to such terms by the Tax 
Increment Law. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the Recitals and the promises and undertakings 
set forth herein, the parties mutually agree and covenant as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE DEVELOPER 

1.1 Developer’s Project shall include improvements to, and development of, the 
Property as set forth in Exhibit B that will result in an increase in the Property’s assessed value.  
All aspects of the Project shall be in accordance with all applicable City zoning and building codes, 
ordinances and regulations. 

1.2 Project Costs shall include, without limitation, costs incurred after approval of this 
agreement for the construction of improvements (including infrastructure improvements), 
environmental remediation costs, demolition, interior remodeling and development of the project.  

1.3 Developer warrants and represents to the City that but for the assistance provided 
by the City under Article II, herein, Developer would not be able to proceed with the Project. 

1.4 Developer and City acknowledge that several of the specific undertakings of the 
parties may require approvals from directors, boards or the City Council as applicable.  The 
parties' agreements are conditioned upon the obtaining of all such approvals in the manner 
required by law.  The parties cannot assure that all such approvals will be obtained; however, 
they agree to use their best good faith efforts to obtain them on a timely basis. 

ARTICLE II 
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE CITY 

2.1 The City shall appropriate sufficient funds for the performance of the City’s 
obligations under this Agreement. 

2.2 City shall cooperate with Developer throughout the Project and shall promptly 
review and/or process all submissions and applications in accordance with applicable City 
ordinances. 

2.3 Subject to all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Agreement and 
applicable provisions of law, and as an inducement by the City to Developer to carry out the 
Project, upon completion of the Project (which shall be defined as issuance of occupancy permits 
for all units/floors of the Project (hereafter “completion”)) the City will provide payments to 
Developer solely from future Tax Increments (derived from both real and personal property) to 
assist with Developer’s Project Costs. The City’s total payment of Tax Increment Revenue to the 
Developer shall not exceed the lesser of i) $611,920 or ii) twenty percent (20%) of the Tax 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 3 

Increment Value as of January 1, 2024, plus interest thereon (the “Contribution”). The Contribution 
will be paid to Developer as follows: 

2.3.1 As the sole source for payment of the Contribution, the City agrees to pay 
the Developer an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the Tax Increment Revenue 
attributable to, and actually received from, the Property during the calendar year. 

2.3.2 The first payment shall be made on August 15 of the year immediately after 
the Project’s completion. This first payment shall be based on the Property’s assessed 
value on January 1 of the year of completion.  Thereafter payments under this Agreement 
shall be due in annual installments, on August 15, for a period of time described in Sec. 
4.2 

2.3.3 Interest on the Contribution shall begin to accrue upon completion of the 
Project.  The interest rate on the Contribution shall be the lesser of 1) the interest rate paid 
by the Developer to the primary lender for the Project, as evidenced by the note indicating 
the loan amount; or, 2) four percent (4%). 

2.3.4 The Contribution shall be a special and limited obligation of the City and 
not a general obligation.  Payments shall first apply to accrued interest and then to the 
principal balance of the Contribution.  Unpaid interest in any year shall be added to the 
principal balance of the Contribution and accrue interest.  The City may prepay the 
Contribution, in its sole discretion, at any time, with no prepayment penalty. 

2.4 This Agreement fully evidences the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution.  No 
separate instrument will be prepared to evidence the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution.  
The Contribution shall not be included in the computation of the City’s statutory debt limitation 
because the Contribution is limited and conditional and no taxes will be levied or pledged for its 
payment.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to change the nature of the City’s obligation 
from a limited and conditional obligation to a general obligation. 

2.5 The City covenants to Developer that until the Contribution plus interest thereon 
has been paid in full, the City shall not close the District prior to its statutory expiration date. 

2.6 The City shall, upon Developer’s request, provide to Developer an accounting of 
the status of the District including, but not limited to, the outstanding principal balance of the 
Contribution and annual Tax Increments received from the District. 

2.7 Developer hereby acknowledges that, as a result of the special and limited nature 
of the City’s obligation to pay the Contribution, Developer’s recovery of the full amount of the 
Contribution depends on factors including, but not limited to, future mill rates, changes in the 
assessed value of the Property, the failure of the Property to generate the Tax Increments at the 

rate expected by Developer, reduction in Tax Increments caused by revenue‐sharing, changes in 
the Tax Increment Law, and other factors beyond the City’s and/or Developer’s control. 

ARTICLE III 
PAYMENT OF TAXES 

3.1 As long as the District is in existence, the Property and all buildings and 
improvements thereon shall be owned and taxable for real estate tax and special assessment 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 4 

purposes.  The City may waive any or all of the restrictions upon execution of a payment in lieu 
of taxes (PILOT) agreement on a form acceptable to the City. 

3.2 Throughout the duration of this agreement, all ad valorem property taxes properly 
assessed against the Property will be paid timely and in full. 

3.3 In the event that any property owned by Developer within the District becomes 
exempt from ad valorem property taxes during the life of the District, then for the remaining life of 
the District, the Developer will make (or cause to be made) annual payments in lieu of taxes in 
amounts equal to what the ad valorem property taxes would have been for such other property 
had it not been exempt.  If the Developer conveys the Property within the District to any party 
(related or unrelated), the terms of such sale shall impose as a covenant upon all successor 
owners of the property the foregoing obligation for payments in lieu of taxes during the life of the 
District.  The City shall be a beneficiary of such covenant and entitled to enforce same against 
the successor owners. 

ARTICLE IV 
CONDITIONS TO PAYMENT; TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

4.1 The City shall have no obligation to pay any portion of the Contribution to 
Developer unless and until all of the following conditions shall have been met: 

4.1.1 The Project’s completion on or before December 31, 2024, subject to 
extension for Force Majeure or upon mutual written agreement of the City and Developer. 

4.1.2 The Property’s assessed value is no less than $3,400,000 on or before 
January 1, 2025. 

4.2 This Agreement, and the City’s obligation to make, or continue, any payments of 
the Contribution, shall terminate when any of the following shall have occurred: 

4.2.1 The conditions in Section 4.1 are not met.  

4.2.2 The Contribution is paid in full or August 15, 2039, whichever occurs first.  

ARTICLE V 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

5.1 No member, officer or employee of the City, during his/her tenure or for one year 
thereafter, will have or shall have had any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or any 
proceeds thereof. 

ARTICLE VI 
WRITTEN NOTICES 

6.1 Any written notice required under this Agreement shall be sent to the following 
individuals: 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 5 

FOR THE CITY: 
 
City of Appleton 
Community and Economic Development Department 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911‐4799 
Attention:  Director 
 
With a copy to: 
 
City of Appleton 
City Attorney’s Office 
100 North Appleton Street 
Appleton, WI 54911‐4799 
Attn:  City Attorney 
 
FOR DEVELOPER: 
 
MF Housing Partners LLC 
100 West Lawrence Drive, Suite 214 
Appleton, WI 54911 
Attn: Tom Klister 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
ASSIGNMENT 

7.1 No party to this Agreement may assign any of its interest or obligations hereunder 
without first obtaining the written consent of the other party. 

ARTICLE VIII 
NO PARTNERSHIP OR VENTURE 

8.1 Developer and its contractors or subcontractors shall be solely responsible for the 
completion of the Project.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or effect any 
partnership, venture or relationship between the City and Developer or any contractor or 
subcontractor employed by Developer in the construction of the Project. 

ARTICLE IX 
MISCELLANEOUS 

9.1 Under no circumstances shall any officer, official, director, member, manager, 
commissioner, agent, or employee of City or Developer have any personal liability arising out of 
this Agreement, and no party shall seek or claim any such personal liability. 

9.2 The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern this Agreement. 

9.3 This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts with the same effect 
as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same instrument. 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 6 

9.4 No modification, alteration, or amendment of this Agreement shall be binding upon 
any party until such modification, alteration, or amendment is reduced to writing and executed by 
all parties to this Agreement. 

9.5 Any captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no 
way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

9.6 If any provisions of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be inoperative or 
unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction because it conflicts with any 
other provision or provisions of this Agreement or any constitution or statute or rule of public 
policy, or for any other reason, then such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the 
provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or circumstance, or of 
rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable 
to any extent whatever.  To the maximum extent possible, this Agreement shall be construed in 
a manner consistent with the powers of the City, including but not limited to, the City's powers 
under the Blight Elimination and Slum Clearance Law and the Tax Increment Law, to achieve its 
intended purpose.  Reference is made to Section 66.1333(17) of the Wisconsin Statutes and 
Chapter 105, Laws of 1975 § 4, which provide that the Blight Elimination and Slum Clearance 
Law and the Tax Increment Law should be construed liberally to effectuate their purposes. 

[Signatures on following pages] 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
first above written. 

CITY OF APPLETON: 
 
 
 
By:   
 Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:   
 Kami L. Lynch, City Clerk 
 
 
STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    : ss. 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ) 
 

Personally came before me this ____ day of _________________, 2021, Jacob A. 
Woodford, Mayor and Kami L. Lynch, City Clerk, of the City of Appleton respectively, to me known 
to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the 
capacity and for the purposes therein intended. 

 
   
Printed Name:    
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission is/expires:    

 
PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE TO PAY FOR  
OBLIGATIONS INCURRED PURSUANT TO  
THIS AGREEMENT: 
 
 
   
Anthony Saucerman, Finance Director 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
   
Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney 
Dated: October 18, 2021 
By:  Christopher R. Behrens 
City Law A21-0718 



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 8 

 
DEVELOPER: 
 
MF HOUSING PARTNERS LLC 
 
 
 
By:   
   , a member 
 
 
By:   
   , a member 
 
 
By:   
   , a member 
  
 
 
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN ) 
    : ss. 
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ) 
 

Personally came, before me this ____ day of ___________________, 2021, [insert 
Member names here] each a member of the LLC, to me known to be the persons who executed 
the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the capacity and for the purposes therein 
intended. 

   
Printed Name:    
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
My commission is/expires:    

 
 

  



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 9 

SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS 

A. Legal Description of Property 
 
 
B. Proposed Improvements 

 

  



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 10 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

 
 

  



 

_____________________________________ 
  MF Housing Partners LLC – City of Appleton 
  Development Agreement 
  Page | 11 

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 
 

 
 



 
71-21 

 
AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO ALDERMANIC DISTRICTS OF THE GENERAL 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO REDISTRICTING 
 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 
 Section 1:  The following provision relating to aldermanic districts is hereby created to 

read as follows: 

(a) The City shall consist of fifteen (15) aldermanic districts which shall consist of  
whole wards or shall be established by combining contiguous whole wards, as follows: 

(1) Aldermanic district 1 shall consist of wards 1 and 2. 

(2) Aldermanic district 2 shall consist of wards 3, 4, 5, and 6.  

(3) Aldermanic district 3 shall consist of wards 7, 8, and 9. 

(4) Aldermanic district 4 shall consist of wards 10, 11, and 12.  

(5) Aldermanic district 5 shall consist of wards 13, 14, 15, and 16. 

(6) Aldermanic district 6 shall consist of wards 17, 18, and 19. 

(7) Aldermanic district 7 shall consist of wards 20, 21, and 22. 

(8) Aldermanic district 8 shall consist of wards 23, 24, and 25. 

(9) Aldermanic district 9 shall consist of wards 26, and 27. 

(10) Aldermanic district 10 shall consist of wards 28, 29, and 30. 

(11) Aldermanic district 11 shall consist of wards 31, 32, 33, and 34. 

(12) Aldermanic district 12 shall consist of wards 35, 36, and 37. 

(13) Aldermanic district 13 shall consist of wards 38, 39, 40, and 41. 

(14) Aldermanic district 14 shall consist of wards 42 and 43. 

(15) Aldermanic district 15 shall consist of wards 44, 45, 46, and 47. 



  Section 2:  This Ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2022. 

 Section 3:  This is a charter ordinance and shall take effect sixty (60) days after its 

passage and publication, unless within such sixty (60) days a petition for a referendum is filed 

pursuant to Section 66.01 of the Wisconsin Statutes in which event this ordinance shall not 

become effective until approved by a majority of the electors voting thereon. 

 
72-21 

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY 
TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, WISCONSIN. 
 (Ziegler Mackville Road & EE Annexation) 
 MBR Number: 14442 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Territory Annexed.  In accordance with §66.0217 of the Wisconsin Statutes 

for 2019 – 2020 and the Unanimous Petition for Direct Annexation filed with the City Clerk on 

September 15, 2021, the following described territory in the Town of Center, Outagamie County, 

Wisconsin, lying contiguous to the City of Appleton, is hereby annexed to the City of Appleton, 

Wisconsin: 

A part of the Northeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 36, Township 22 North, 
Range 17 East, Town of Center, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 
62,759 Square Feet 1.4407 acres of land and being further described as follows: 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 36; 
Thence South 00°06'21" West 117.18 feet coincident with the East line of the 
Northeast ¼ of said Section 36 to the point of beginning; 
Thence continue South 00°06'21" West 222.82 feet coincident with the East line of 
the Northeast ¼ of said Section 36 to the South line of lands described in 
Warranty Deed Document No.679131 of the Outagamie County Register of Deeds 
Office; 
Thence North 89°51'03" West 225.00 feet coincident with the South line of lands 
described in Warranty Deed Document No.679131 of the Outagamie County 
Register of Deeds Office; 
Thence North 00°06'21" East 307.00 feet coincident with the West line of lands 
described in Warranty Deed Document No.679131 and then the West line of lands 



described in Warranty Deed Document No.544576 to the South line of Mackville 
Road. 
Thence South 89°51'03" East 107.95 feet coincident with the South line of 
Mackville Road to a highway vision corner; 
Thence South 44°49'45" East 119.00 feet coincident with said highway vision 
corner to the West line of Ballard Road (aka C.T.H. “EE”); 
Thence South 89°51'03" East 33.00 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Town of Center Tax Parcel: 040097800.  
 
The current population of such territory is 2 people. 
 
 

 Section 2.  Effect of Annexation.  From and after the date of this ordinance, the territory 

described in Section 1 shall be a part of the City of Appleton for any and all purposes provided 

by law and all persons coming or residing within such territory shall be subject to all ordinances, 

rules and regulations governing the City of Appleton. 

 

 Section 3.  Ward Designation.  The territory described in Section 1 of this ordinance is 

hereby made a part of the existing Forty-first (41st) Ward, attached to the Thirteenth (13th) 

Aldermanic District of the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, subject to the ordinances, rules 

and regulations of the City governing wards.  As a result of redistricting, effective January 1, 

2022, this territory will hereby be a part of the Thirty-eighth (38th) Ward, attached to the 

Thirteenth (13th) Aldermanic District. 

 

 Section 4.  Zoning Classification.  The territory described in Section 1 is hereby zoned 

as follows, pursuant to §66.0217(7)(a), Stats., and §23-65(e), Appleton Municipal Code: 

Temporary AG District (Temporary Agricultural District) 

  



 Section 5.  Statutory Payments.  Subject to the requirements of Wis. Stats. 

§66.0217(14), the Finance Director will pay annually to the Town of Center, for 5 years, an 

amount equal to the amount of property taxes that the town levied on the annexed territory, as 

shown by the tax roll under Wis. Stats. §70.65, in the year in which the annexation is final. 

 

Section 6.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance is invalid or unconstitutional, 

or if the application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances is invalid or 

unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions or 

applications of this ordinance, which can be given without the invalid or unconstitutional 

provision or application. 

 

 Section 7.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

publication. 

 
73-21 

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY 
TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, WISCONSIN. 
 (Lightning Drive & C.T.H. JJ (Right-of-Way) Annexation) 
 MRB No.:  14443 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Territory Annexed.  In accordance with §66.0217 of the Wisconsin Statutes 

for 2019 – 2020 and the Unanimous Petition for Direct Annexation filed with the City Clerk on 

September 17, 2021, the following described territory in the Town of Grand Chute, Outagamie 

County, Wisconsin, lying contiguous to the City of Appleton, is hereby annexed to the City of 

Appleton, Wisconsin: 



A part of the Fractional Southwest ¼ of Section 6, Township 21 North, Range 18 
East, Town of Grand Chute, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 551,568 
Square Feet 12.6622 acres of land and being further described as follows: 
Commencing at the South ¼ corner of said Section 6; 
Thence South 00°15'22" West 41.25 feet coincident with the current City of 
Appleton corporate limits; 
Thence South 89°44'38" West 1,312.94 feet coincident with the current City of 
Appleton corporate limits; 
Thence North 00°09'19" West 695.75 feet coincident with the current City of 
Appleton corporate limits to the Westerly boundary of Transportation Project 
Plat No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence North 00°27'27" East 27.61 feet coincident with said Westerly boundary 
of Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02 to a North line thereof; 
Thence Southeasterly 162.67 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a 
radius of 230.00 feet and the chord of which bears South 61°16'46" East 159.30 
feet coincident with the boundary of Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence South 79°18'14" East 46.36 feet coincident with the boundary of 
Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence North 56°36'28" East 28.01 feet coincident with the boundary of 
Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence North 58°51'13" East 127.60 feet; 
Thence North 56°36'28" East 300.63 feet; 
Thence Northeasterly 602.86 feet along the arc of curve to the left having a radius 
of 965.00 feet and the chord of which bears North 38°42'38" East 593.11 feet; 
Thence North 89°51'14" West 156.83 feet to the Southeast corner of Outlot 10 of 
Apple Ridge 2; 
Thence North 13°52'54" East 307.18 feet coincident with the East line of Outlot 
10 of Apple Ridge 2; 
Thence North 03°30'35" West 188.39 feet coincident with the East line of Outlot 
10 of Apple Ridge 2 to the Southerly line of Baldeagle Drive; 
Thence North 76°55'16" East 145.11 feet; 
Thence Northwesterly 201.39 feet along the arc of curve to the left having a 
radius of 965.00 feet and the chord of which bears North 16°31'22" West 201.02 
feet; 
Thence Northerly 408.87 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius 
of 1,035.00 feet and the chord of which bears North 11°11'03" West 406.21 feet; 
Thence North 00°07'58" East 192.71 feet to the North line of the Fractional SW ¼ 
of said Section 6;  
Thence South 89°27'19" East 70.00 feet coincident with the North line of the 
Fractional SW ¼ of said Section 6; 
Thence South 00°07'58" West 192.20 feet; 



Thence Southerly 381.21 feet along the arc of curve to the left having a radius of 
965.00 feet and the chord of which bears South 11°11'03" East 378.74 feet; 
Thence Southerly 1,429.04 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a 
radius of 1,035.00 feet and the chord of which bears South 17°03'12" West 
1,318.20 feet; 
Thence South 56°36'28" West 300.63 feet; 
Thence South 54°21'43" West 127.60 feet; 
Thence South 56°36'28" West 85.86 feet coincident with the boundary of 
Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence Southwesterly 41.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a 
radius of 310.00 feet and the chord of which bears South 52°49'13" West 41.25 
feet coincident with the boundary of Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence Southeasterly 241.12 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a 
radius of 238.50 feet and the chord of which bears South 61°43'30" East 230.98 
feet coincident with the boundary of Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence South 00°28'26" West 266.19 feet coincident with the boundary of 
Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence North 89°44'38" East 214.97 feet coincident with the boundary of 
Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence South 00°28'26" West 35.00 feet coincident with the boundary of 
Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02; 
Thence North 89°44'38" East 751.25 feet coincident with the boundary of 
Transportation Project Plat  
No: 0000-0G-17-4.02 to the East line of the Fractional SW ¼ of said Section 6;  
Thence South 00°27'14" West 61.25 feet coincident with the East line of the 
Fractional SW ¼ of said Section 6 to the point of beginning. 
Part of tax parcels: 101157000 and 101158200.  
 
The current population of such territory is 0 people. 
 
 

 Section 2.  Effect of Annexation.  From and after the date of this ordinance, the territory 

described in Section 1 shall be a part of the City of Appleton for any and all purposes provided 

by law and all persons coming or residing within such territory shall be subject to all ordinances, 

rules and regulations governing the City of Appleton. 

 



 Section 3.  Ward Designation.  The territory described in Section 1 of this ordinance is 

hereby made a part of the Thirty-eighth (38th) Ward, attached to the thirteenth (13th) Aldermanic 

District of the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, subject to the ordinances, rules and 

regulations of the City governing wards.  As a result of redistricting, effective January 1, 2022, 

this territory will hereby be a part of the Thirty-ninth (39th) Ward, attached to the Thirteenth 

(13th) Aldermanic District. 

 

 Section 4.  Zoning Classification.  The territory described in Section 1 is hereby zoned 

as follows, pursuant to §66.0217(7)(a), Stats., and §23-65(e), Appleton Municipal Code: 

Temporary AG District (Temporary Agricultural District) 

  

Section 5.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance is invalid or unconstitutional, 

or if the application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances is invalid or 

unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions or 

applications of this ordinance, which can be given without the invalid or unconstitutional 

provision or application. 

 

 Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

publication. 

 
74-21 

 
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY 
TO THE CITY OF APPLETON, WISCONSIN. 
 (Spartan Drive (Right-of-Way) Annexation) 
 MBR Number: 14451 
 



The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Territory Annexed.  In accordance with §66.0217 of the Wisconsin Statutes 

for 2019 – 2020 and the Unanimous Petition for Direct Annexation filed with the City Clerk on 

October 5, 2021, the following described territory in the Town of Grand Chute, Outagamie 

County, Wisconsin, lying contiguous to the City of Appleton, is hereby annexed to the City of 

Appleton, Wisconsin: 

A part of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 4027, located in and being a part of the 
South ½ the Fractional Northeast ¼ of Section 2, Township 21 North, Range 17 East, 
Town of Grand Chute, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 171,926 Square Feet 
(3.9468 Acres) of land and described as follows: 
Commencing at the East ¼ corner of said Section 2; 
Thence North 89°40'21" West 839.03 feet along the South line of the Fractional NE ¼ of 
said Section 2 and being coincident with the South line of Certified Survey Map No.4431 
to the point of beginning; 
Thence continue North 89°40'21" West 234.71 feet along the South line of the Fractional 
NE ¼ of said Section 2 
Thence North 39°21'44" West 331.88 feet; 
Thence North 28°42'55" East 170.75 feet; 
Thence Westerly 443.68 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 365.00 
feet and the chord of which bears South 85°27'40" West 416.86 feet; 
Thence South 50°38'16" West 177.69 feet to the West line of Lot 1 of Certified Survey 
Map No.4027; 
Thence North 00°19'45" East 90.97 feet along the West line of Lot 1 of Certified Survey 
Map No.4027; 
Thence North 50°38'16" East 119.60 feet; 
Thence Easterly 644.99 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 
435.00 feet and the chord of which bears South 86°53'06" East 587.51 feet; 
Thence South 44°24'28" East 175.81 feet; 
Thence North 45°35'32" East 47.78 feet;  
Thence South 44°24'28" East 119.08 feet to the East line of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map 
No.4027; 
Thence South 01°03'01" West 219.70 feet along the East line of Lot 1 of Certified Survey 
Map No.4027 to the Point of Beginning. 
 
The current population of such territory is 0 people. 
 
 

 Section 2.  Effect of Annexation.  From and after the date of this ordinance, the territory 

described in Section 1 shall be a part of the City of Appleton for any and all purposes provided 



by law and all persons coming or residing within such territory shall be subject to all ordinances, 

rules and regulations governing the City of Appleton. 

 

 Section 3.  Ward Designation.  The territory described in Section 1 of this ordinance is 

hereby made a part of the Twentieth (20th) Ward, attached to the seventh (7th) Aldermanic 

District of the City of Appleton, Outagamie County, subject to the ordinances, rules and 

regulations of the City governing wards.  As a result of redistricting, on January 1, 2022 this 

territory will hereby be a part of the Twentieth (20th) Ward, attached to the Seventh (7th) 

Aldermanic District. 

 

 Section 4.  Zoning Classification.  The territory described in Section 1 is hereby zoned 

as follows, pursuant to §66.0217(7)(a), Stats., and §23-65(e), Appleton Municipal Code: 

Temporary Agricultural District (Temporary AG) 

  

Section 5.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance is invalid or unconstitutional, 

or if the application of this ordinance to any person or circumstances is invalid or 

unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions or 

applications of this ordinance, which can be given without the invalid or unconstitutional 

provision or application. 

 

 Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

publication. 

 



 
75-21 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 70-21, REVISING SECTION 2-3 OF 
THE GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO 
BOUNDARIES AND WARDS. 
 (Common Council / Redistricting 2021) 
 
The Common Council of the City of Appleton does ordain as follows: 
 
 
 Section 1: The City of Appleton shall be divided into forty-seven (47) wards 

(Descriptions are based on centerlines of streets, centerline of intersections of two streets, 

centerline of the Fox River and railroads and exact boundary of the City of Appleton Corporate 

Limit Line, unless otherwise noted).  That Section 2-3 (Ordinance No. 70-21) is hereby amended 

by making changes to the following wards: 

THE TWELFTH WARD 
The twelfth ward shall include and contain all that portion of territory lying within the following 
confines: Commencing at the intersection of Drew Street and Pacific Street and being the point 
of beginning; thence East on Drew Street to Vine Street; thence Southeasterly on Vine Street to 
Wood Street; thence South on Wood Street to North Street; thence East on North Street to Green 
Bay Road; thence Northeasterly on Green Bay Road to Green Bay Court; thence Southeasterly 
along Green Bay Court and the Southeasterly extension of Green Bay Court to the main channel 
of the Fox River; thence Southwesterly and Northwesterly along the main channel of the Fox 
River to the Lawe Street Bridge; thence East-South-East to the Southeasterly end of Brokaw 
Place; thence Northwest and North on Brokaw Place to South Street; thence West on South 
Street to Meade Street; thence North on Meade Street to Washington Street; thence West of 
Washington Street to Drew Street; thence North on Drew Street to the point of beginning. 
 

THE SIXTEENTH WARD 
The sixteenth ward shall include and contain all that portion of territory lying within the 
following confines: Commencing at the intersection of Schaefer Street and Calumet Street and 
being the point of beginning; thence North on Schaefer Street to Fremont Street; thence West on 
Fremont Street to Weimar Street; thence North on Weimar Street to John Street; thence 
Southeasterly on John Street to Midpark Drive; thence Northeasterly and North on Midpark 
Drive to Bona Avenue; thence East on Bona Avenue to Chickadee Lane; thence Southeasterly on 
Chickadee Lane to Rail Road; thence Northeasterly on Rail Road to Kensington Drive; thence 
Southeasterly and South on Kensington Drive to Calumet Street; thence West on Calumet Street 
to the point of beginning. 
 



THE THIRTY-FIRST WARD 
The thirty-first ward shall include and contain all that portion of territory lying within the 
following confines: Commencing at the intersection of College Avenue and Appleton Street; 
thence East on College Avenue to Drew Street; thence North on Drew Street to Washington 
Street; thence East on Washington Street to Meade Street; thence South on Meade Street to 
South Street; thence East on South Street to Brokaw Place; thence South and Southeast on 
Brokaw Place to its Southeast end; thence West-North-West to the Lawe Street Bridge at the 
main channel of the Fox River; thence Northwesterly and Southwesterly along the main channel 
of the Fox River to the Oneida Street Bridge; thence Northwesterly on the Oneida Street Bridge 
and Oneida Street to Appleton Street; thence North on Appleton Street to the point of beginning. 
 

THE THIRTY-NINTH WARD 
The thirty-ninth ward shall include and contain all that portion of territory lying within the 
following confines: Commencing at the intersection of Meade Street and Broadway Drive and 
being the point of beginning; thence East on Broadway Drive to Ballard Road; thence East along 
the South line of the SW ¼ of Section 31, T.22N., R.18E. to the corporate limits at a point on the 
South line of Lot 33, Apple Hill Farms; thence Southeasterly and continue in a clockwise 
direction along the corporate limits to Edgewood Drive along the South line of the SW ¼ of 
Section 5, T.21N., R.18E.; thence West on Edgewood Drive to French Road; thence South on 
French Road to Ashbury Drive; thence West on Ashbury Drive to Ballard Road; thence North on 
Ballard Road to the intersection of Melody Lane and the corporate limits; thence West on 
Melody Lane and the corporate limits in a clockwise direction along the corporate limits to 
Edgewood Drive at the South line of the SW ¼ of Section 1, T.21N., R17E., thence West on 
Edgewood Drive to Meade Street; thence North on Meade Street to its intersection with Spartan 
Drive and the corporate limits; thence East along the corporate limits and continue in a clockwise 
direction along the corporate limits and then Meade Street to the point of beginning. Excepting 
all that land within the afore described area that is not currently within the corporate limits. 
And 
The East 109 feet of the West 578 feet of the South 11 acres of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast 
¼ of Section 1, Township 21 North, Range 17 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, 
Wisconsin, less and excepting premises conveyed and/or used for highway purposes. 
 

THE FORTY-FIRST WARD 
The forty-first ward shall include and contain all that portion of territory lying within the 
following confines: Commencing at the intersection of Ashbury Drive and Ballard Road and 
being the point of beginning; thence East on Ashbury Drive to French Road; thence South on 
French Road to its intersection with the corporate limits; thence continue South and in a 
clockwise direction along the corporate limits to Wisconsin Avenue; thence Southwesterly on 
Wisconsin Avenue to the intersection of Ballard Road; thence North on Ballard Road to the point 
of beginning. Excepting all that land within the afore described area that is not currently within 
the corporate limits. 
 



 Section 2: This Ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2022 and shall govern the 

adjustment of aldermanic districts for the purpose of elections subsequent to January 1, 2022.  

 

 Section 3: This is a charter ordinance and it shall take effect sixty (60) days after its 

passage and publication, unless within such sixty (60) days a petition for a referendum is filed 

pursuant to Section 66.01 of the Wisconsin Statutes in which event this ordinance shall not 

become effective until approved by a majority of the electors voting thereon. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 10-20-21
	0002_1_Appleton High Schools DECA Week Proclamation
	0002_2_Native American Heritage Month Proclamation
	0002_3_Runaway Homeless Youth Prevention Month Proclamation
	0002_4_Small Business Saturday Proclamation
	0004_1_Census Block Resolution 2021 Redistricting
	0005_1_The Collective log of public dialogue-
	0007_1_Professional Services Industries
	0008_1_River Tyme Bistro SL
	0008_2_Denial Recommendation -River Tyme Bistro
	0009_1_Tee Tees Nachos LLC Class A Combo
	0010_1_True North 822
	0011_1_StaffReport_ZieglerMackvilleRd_EE_Annexation_For10-13-21
	0012_1_StaffReport_LightningDr_JJ_Annexation_For10-13-21
	Sheets and Views
	Portrait


	0012_2_DOA 14443_LightningDrJJAnnex_ReviewLetter
	0013_1_StaffReport_SpartanDr_Annexation_For10-27-21
	Sheets and Views
	Landscape


	0013_2_WI DOA_SpartanDrROWAnnex_ReviewLetter
	0014_1_Mead Pool Condition Anlysis Memo
	0015_1_Finance Committee - ARPA Memo
	0016_1_Award of Contract - Unit O-21
	0017_1_2021 Ellen Kort Park - Phase I_
	0018_1_2021 Municipal Services Budget transfer
	0019_1_Rise Apts DA Memo to CEDC_10-27-21
	0019_2_0718-Rise Apts-MFHousingPartners-DevelopmentAgrmnt-DRAFT10-18-21
	0020_1_Ordinances going to Council 11-3-21
	AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY
	AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY
	AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING TERRITORY
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 70-21, REVISING SECTION 2-3 OF THE GENERAL ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF APPLETON, RELATING TO BOUNDARIES AND WARDS.




